
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17124-0001

April 24, 2017

The Honorable Seth M. Grove
State Representative, 196th Legislative District
7 East Wing
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Dear Representative Grove:

The Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (PLCB) received your letter dated Jan. 24k”, in which you
asked a series of questions regarding the financial metrics and operational efficiencies of the
agency. We appreciate the opportunity to discuss how the PLCB is ensuring that the agency is
maximizing the revenue it produces, and controlling operational costs, in order to fund critical
state programs while providing outstanding value to our customers. We also appreciate the time
you afforded us to respond to your inquiries.

As you know, the PLCB is not funded with a General Fund appropriation, but rather through an
executive authorization from the proceeds of the State Stores Fund. In Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17,
the agency will transfer S217 million to the General Fund to support essential state services. This
figure does not include the transfers made to other state agencies, as described more fully below.
We trust that the dialogue during the House Appropriations Committee hearing on March 2”
helped answer many of the questions that you and the committee members had regarding the PLCB
as you prepare to make decisions about the FY 2017-18 state budget.

The PLCB budget submission to the House Appropriations Committee, which was submitted prior
to the March 2 hearing, includes much of the information requested in your letter. Consequently,
for brevity and consistency, this response, when appropriate, references the budget submission.
with corresponding page number(s). An additional copy of the PLCB’s budget submission is
attached for your convenience.

1. Program Performance — Key Performance Indicators and Cost Drivers

In contrast to other state agencies, the PLCB prepares detailed financial statements that outline the
financial results of the business, which is the fundamental key performance indicator that guides
the business operations of the PLCB. These financial reports are publicly available on the PLCB
website. www.Icb.pa.uov. Page 10 of our budget submission includes a specific discussion of the
various perfoniwnce measures that we utilize to assess outcomes in terms of controlling costs and
increasing sales. Additionally, we develop an annual business plan and budget for each program
area. Our Finance office meets quarterly with each program area to examine actual costs for the
quarter in comparison to the plan and discuss any current or anticipated variances.
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On the regulatory side of the agency, the PLCB ensures responsiveness to licensees through our
new online licensing and regulatory portal. PLCB±. This online system has eliminated paper fonns
and expedited the review of licensing matters by reducing the delay associated with sending hard
copies of information through the mail. Further, PLCB+ allows users to access their account 24/7
to update information, pay fees and apply for special permits.

The most significant cost drivers for the PLCB, as explained on page 6 of our budget submission,
are personnel services, which are largely outside of the control of the agency as a result of
Commonwealth-negotiated employee direct and indirect compensation. Also, outside of the
control of the PLCB are higher pension, worker’s compensation, and other post-employment
benefit (OPEB) costs for employees. While operational expenses have increased as well, those
costs are mostly correlated to the PLCB’s increased sales growth of approximately four percent
per year over the past few years.

2. New Programs/Initiatives

As discussed throughout our budget submission, including the FY 2017-18 initiatives section on
page 7, the primary focus of our recent and future initiatives involves the continued
implementation of Acts 39. 85 and 166. Many of these initiatives were legislatively mandated in
Act 39. and consequently must be implemented regardless of any cost-benefit analysis (i.e.,
developing new license applications and investigating them, ensuring that holders of wine
expanded permits are properly stocked with wine they wish to sell, etc.). Other discretionary
portions of the 2016 liquor reforms, such as the operation of additional Fine Wine and Good Spirits
(FWGS) stores on Sundays and selling PA lottery tickets through self-service Lottery machines
continue to be assessed and modified based on customer response to these programs. The future
development of a customer relations management program will be evaluated based on
implementation costs and the potential to increase sales.

3. Agency Line Item Review

Pages 3-7 and 16 of the PLCB budget submission include the breakdown of the agency’s executive
authorization request by major object and includes a narrative description of the changes. The
increase in the executive authorization, as noted before, largely reflects costs outside of the control
of the PLCB. including increasing personnel costs. Additionally, the agency has encountered costs
associated with the unanticipated implementation of Act 39 and higher operational expenses from
increased freight, store rent, and credit/debit card fees. To ensure the PLCB’s personnel resources
reflect the operational needs of the agency, especially in light of the changes from the 2016 liquor
reforms. we have undertaken an ongoing comprehensive review of vacant positions to determine
whether there is a compelling business need to fill those respective positions.

As mentioned previously, the agency produces detailed financial statements that include a
comparative operating statement, which details revenues, expenditures and changes in the State
Store Fund position compared to the previous fiscal year. The fiscal year end reports are publicly
available on the PLCB website under “news and reports.”
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Page 39 of the budget submission provides a statement of cash receipts and disbursements which
includes the projected cash balance at the end of FY 2016-17 and a further five years of estimates
based on the assumptions listed in the footnotes on that page. Additionally, attached is the most
recent financial audit of the State Stores Fund and the Liquor License Fund that details cash flow.

4. GO TIME (Continuous Improvement I Lean Government)

Attached is a spreadsheet of GO TIME savings over the past two fiscal years with a brief
description of each item. The savings from GO TIME initiatives did not fund specific items, but
rather contributed to the continuing efforts of the PLCB to limit operating expenses through
operational efficiencies and innovative business strategies.

5. Federal Funds

The PLCB does not receive federal Funds.

6. Contracts (non-personnel)

Pages 17-34 of our budget submission includes the requested information regarding consulting
contracts in fiscal year 2015-16 and 2016-17, as well as 2017-18.

7. Lapsed Funds

Page 5 of our budget submission outlines the executive authorizations and corresponding lapses
of funds for the past three fiscal years. Historical lapses for the executive authorization specific to
the purchase of liquor are also listed in the PLCB budget submission on page 37.

8. Regulations

With the advent of Acts 39. 85 and 166, the PLCB anticipates updating its regulations to conform
with these acts. Act 39 amended more than 35 sections of the Liquor Code and added several more,
and Act 166 amended 17 sections of the Liquor Code, including some of the same sections
amended in Act 39, and added another new section. As a result of these comprehensive changes,
the process of aligning PLCB regulations is anticipated to be a multi-year endeavor.

In FY 2015-16, the PLCB promulgated six regulatory amendments. The regulations did not result
in any significant fiscal impact to the PLCB or the regulated community.

• Conversion of Suspension into a Fine (40 PA Code § 7.10)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 2-2070).
o This regulation increased the minimum fines acceptable to the PLCB when an unserved

license suspension is converted to a fine at the request of an applicant. The regulation
impacts only those licensees with unserved suspensions that want to transfer the license
after incurring a suspension.
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• Economic Development Licenses (40 PA Code § 3.105)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 2-2070).
o This regulation further clarified the criteria that an economic development restaurant

license applicant must meet to prove that he or she has “exhausted reasonable means
for obtaining a suitable license within the county.” [47 P.S. § 4-461 (b.l)(1)].

• Responsible Alcohol Management Program (40 PA Code § § 5.211,5.232, 5.233)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 4-471.1 and 47 P.S. § 2-2070).
o This regulation permitted third parties to develop a training curriculum to meet the

requirements of the Responsible Alcohol Management Program (RAMP) and provide
those materials to the Bureau of Alcohol Education for approval.

• Right to Occupy (40 PA Code § § 7.2 and 7.4)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 2-2070).
o This regulation recognized that a lease or deed is not the only way to establish the right

to occupy a proposed licensed premises. As part of the application process, an applicant
must prove its right to occupy the proposed licensed premises, which may include a
lease or deed or through a contract with the owner of the premises.

• Discount Pricing Practices (40 PA Code § 13.102)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 2-207(i).
o This regulation was amended to align PLCB regulations with changes that were made

to the Liquor Code related to the hours in which licensees may discount the sale of
alcohol at its licensed premises (i.e., happy hours).

• Posting Requirements for Extension (40 PA Code § 7.22)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 2-2070).
o This regulation was amended as a result of changes to the Liquor Code. Regulations

had previously required applicants for an extension of the licensed premises to post
notice of the application filing for 15 days. An amendment to the Liquor Code increased
the posting period to 30 days and the regulation was amended accordingly.

In FY 2014-15, the PLCB promulgated one regulatory amendment. The regulation did not result
in any significant fiscal impact to the PLCB or the regulated community.

• Breweries (40 PA Code § 3.93)
o The statutory authority for this regulation is 47 P.S. § 4-446(a)(l) and 47 P.S. § 2-2070)
o This regulation, which was requested by the industry, permitted brewery licensees to

serve their own beer for consumption on the licensed premises under certain conditions
without needing to also acquire a brewery pub license from the PLCB. Accordingly. a
brewery licensee must have seating for at Least 10 customers and must make food
available in order to serve its beer for on-premises consumption.
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9. Augmentations

While the PLCB does not receive augmented funds in the form of interagency transfers from other
agencies, the PLCB does make significant transfers to other state agencies. In FY 20 15-16, the
PLCB’s transfers to other Commonwealth agencies included:

• $26.1 million to the Pennsylvania State Police Bureau of Liquor Control Enforcement.
• S3.3 million provided to support the Department of Drug and Alcohol Programs (an

increase of$l.6 million over the prior fiscal year).
• $9.7 million transferred to other Commonwealth agencies that billed the agency for

services provided:
o $2 million to the Office of Administration (OA) for consolidated data services and

another $2.4 million for classification and pay services, strategic services/SEAP, SAP-
based services, and telecommunication charges.

o $1.0 million to the Department of General Services (DGS) for real estate and shared
services, employee self and tort insurance, warehouse and distribution services. and
Capitol Complex services.

o $2.7 million to the Auditor General.
o $1.1 million to the Civil Service Commission.
o $368,000 to Payroll Operations.
o $164,000 to Treasury.

10. Fines/Settlements/Litigation

The PLCB is involved in two ongoing litigation cases. The first case involves the now shuttered
wine kiosk program. While the agency recovered its costs for this program, the manufacturer of
the kiosks, Simple Brands, sued the PLCB for alleged breach of contract. The litigation, which
remains in discovery phase, has resulted in approximately $500,000 in legal fees and expenses.

Second. the agency is engaged in litigation against World Transportation, Inc. (WTI), who
previously served as the PLCB’s Philadelphia warehouse contractor. WTI essentially went out of
business and defaulted in its obligations, which required the PLCB to procure an emergency
contract with XTL, Inc., the cuneni warehouse vendor, to run the Philadelphia distribution
operations. The litigation, which remains in discovery phase, has resulted in about $440,000 in
legal fees and expenses.

II. Information Technology Modernizations/Contracts

As previously referenced, in May 2016 the PLCB launched PLCB--. which transformed almost 70
paper processes into a paperless online system. The PLCB received the 2016 Control States Best
Practices Award from Swlcii’co’s magazine, in part, because of the innovation demonstrated by the
development of PLCB÷. The PLCB expects to save an estimated $4.3 million from efficiencies
created by PLCB+ over the next few years.
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While the PLCB does not have any information technology contracts specifically associated with
modernization efforts, current contracts do provide for production support with opportunities to
engage in system upgrades. For example, the PLCB is currently working with OA, Unisys, IBM
and Oracle to improve our disaster recovery capabilities. Also, the PLCB is in the process of
modernizing our data warehouse approach by replacing the current Oracle Retail Data Warehouse
with a Power BI/Microsoft Azure solution. This modernization will provide the PLCB with a more
comprehensive data warehouse product.

All PLCB information technology contracts are actively managed, invoiced and reviewed monthly
to ensure costs are controlled, and PLCB staff assigns the specific tasks associated with the
implementation of the contract.

The PLCB has actively engaged in the use of consolidated enterprise services and contracts. As a
significant user of merchant services for credit card processing, the PLCB collaborated with the
Office of Budget, DGS and other state agencies to negotiate a merchant service agreement with
First Data Services and Santander Bank. The volume of transactions processed by the PLCB
helped to lower the transaction fee costs across other state agencies. Additionally, the PLCB
lowered operating costs for hosting our current information technology platforms by consolidating
the services through PA Compute Services. This consolidation resulted in approximately $3
million in savings. The PLCB also partners with OA on master agreements for a variety of
information technology products. which produce significant savings when compared to the PLCB
purchasing those sen’ices independently.

I hope that this information is helpful to answer the questions included in your letter. Please do not
hesitate to contact me at 717-346-8402 with any additional questions or clarifications.

Sincerely.

ChristoplYer L. Herrington, Esq.
Director of Legislative & Governmentai Affairs

Attachments

cc: The Honorable Stanley Saylor. Chairman, House Appropriations Committee
The Honorable Joseph Markosek, Minority Chairman, House Appropriations Committee
The Honorable Adam Harris. Chairman. House Liquor Control Committee
The Honorable Paul Costa, Minority Chairman, House Liquor Control Committee
Tim Holden. Chairman
Mike Negra, Board Member
Michael Newsome, Board Member
Charlie Mooney, Executive Director
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B
udget:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

’IiO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
Pp.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
.

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

In
conform

ance
w

ith
the

P
ennsylvania

L
iquor C

ode,T
he

P
ennsylvania

L
iquor

C
ontrol

B
oard

(PL
C

B
)

serves
as

the
co

rn
inonw

enlth’s
responsible

seller
o
f

w
ines

and
spirits,

regulates
P

ennsylvania’s
beverage

alcohol
industry,

and
prom

otes
social

responsibility
and

alcohol
education,

w
hile

m
axim

izing
financial

returns
for

the
benefit

ofall
Pennsylvanians.

Funds
to

cover
the

general
operating

expenditures
of

the
L

iquor
C

ontrol
B

oard
are

generated
by

the
sale

of w
ine

and
sphts

and
com

e
from

the
State

Stores
Fund.

T
he

PL
C

B
regulates

the
m

anufacture,
im

portation,
sale,

distribution,and
disposition

o
falcohol

in
the

com
m

onw
ealth.

T
he

agency
does

notsel[
m

alt
and

brew
ed

beverages,
rather

it
regulates

those
sales

through
the

licensing
of

distributors
and

other
retailers.

T
he

agency
is

responsible
for

w
holesale

operations
of

w
ine

and
spirits,

w
hich

licensees
m

ay
pick

up
from

state-operated
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

retail
stores

or
licensee

service
centers,

or
have

w
ine

and
spirits

delivered
from

PL
C

B
distribution

centers.
A

ll
package

sales
of

spirits
in

Pennsylvania,
w

ith
the

exception
of

those
sold

at
licensed

distilleries,
are

m
ade

through
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

stores
operated

by
the

PL
C

B
.

M
ost

w
ine

sales
are

also
m

ade
th

o
u
g
h

the
P

L
C

B
’s

m
ore

than
600

Fine
W

ine
&

G
ood

Spirits
stores,

although
w

ine
can

now
also

be
purchased

—
in

lim
ited

quantities
—

from
properly

licensed
and

perm
itted

private
m

arket
retailers.

In
2016,

the
m

ost
com

prehensive
changes

to
P

ennsylvania’s
L

iquor
C

ode
since

Prohibition
w

ere
signed

into
law

,
transform

atively
changing

the
beverage

alcohol
landscape

in
P

ennsylvania.
A

m
ong

the
m

ost
significant

changes
brought

about
by

A
cts

39,
85

and
166

of
2016

w
ere

direct
shipping

o
fw

ine
to

residents;
w

ine-to-go
sales

atrestaurant
and

hotel
licensees,

including
grocery

and
convenience

stores;
P

ennsylvania
L

ottery
sales

and
expanded

Sunday
and

holiday
hours

at Fine
W

ine
&

G
ood

Spirits
stores;

new
m

arketing
opportunities

including
a

custom
er

relations
m

anagem
ent

program
;

and
distributors’

ability
to

sell
beer

in
any

size
package,

including
six

packs,
grow

lers
and

single
bottles.

T
he

changes
are

volum
inous

and
affect

not
only

licensees,
but

also
how

the
PL

C
B

conducts
its

business
operations

in
general,

along
w

ith
its

revenues
and

profits.

F
or

F’!
2017-18,the

PL
C

B
is

subm
itting

a
budget

request
o
f

$570,565,000
for

the
genem

i
operations

ofthe
PL

C
B

, w
hich

is
funded

through
an

executive
authorization

to
spend

from
revenues

o
f

the
State

Stores
Fund.

T
his

request
w

ill
allow

the
B

oard
to

continue
to

operate
m

ore
than

600
retail

stores,
w

hich
provide

w
ines

and
spirits

to
the

consum
ing

public
and

licensees,
and

three
distribution

center
locations,

w
hich

deliver
w

ines
and

spirits
to

both
PL

C
B

stores
and

licensees.
T

his
request

represents
an

increase
of

$32,180,000
or

6.0%
from

the
fiscal

year
2016-17

E
xecutive

A
uthorization

of$538,385,000.
T

his
request

has
an

increase
of

$22.1
m

illion
for

personnel
services

(+6.9%
).

Salary
and

w
age

increases
o
f

$13.3
m

illion
($7.7%

)
reflect

the
costs

for
contract

changes,
the

O
ctober/20

16(2.75%
)

G
ST

and
M

anagem
ent

pay
schedule

changes
(4%

)
and

the
JuIy/2017

G
SI

(2.0%
),

as
w

ell
as

the
fill-year

cost
for

the
com

plem
ent

increase
(125

salaried
positions)

for
A

ct
39.

B
enefit

rate
changes

account
for

the
rem

aining
8.8

m
illion

(6.0%
)

requested
increase

for
personnel

services.
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X
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E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A
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:
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E
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G
E

N
E

R
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L
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P
E

R
A

T
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N
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(A
G

E
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C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

Pp.
E

32.1-E
32.8

T
his

request
reflects

an
increEm

e
of$8.8

m
illion

for
operational

expenses
(+4.3%

).
Store

leases,
credit

and
debit

card
usage

fees,
and

freight
and

w
arehousing

costs
are

directly
correlated

to
our

sales
grow

th
o
f4

%
over

the
last

few
years.

A
ct

39’s
vine-to-go

provision
has

already
added

several
hundred

licensed
w

ine-to-go
retailers

utilizing
the

PL
C

B
’s

direct
delivery

program
.

T
ins

change
is

expected
to

significantly
increase

the
nuLnber

of
w

arehouse
deliveries

and
be

a
cost-driver

ofP
L

C
B

height
and

w
arehousing

costs.
T

hese
threc

operating
expense

item
s

represent
nearly

$140
m

illion
or

tw
o-thirds

of
the

PL
C

B
’s

operational
expense

request.
T

he
gLants

increase
o
f$

1
3

m
illion

to
$3.2

m
illion

reflects
the

tw
o

new
$1

m
illion

grants
created

by
A

ct
39

for
the

PA
M

alt
and

B
rew

ed
B

everage
B

oard
and

the
PA

W
ine

M
arketing

and
R

esearch
Program

B
oard,

in
addition

to
the

long-standing
alcohol

education
giants.

Several
other

ongoing
business

needs
that

are
critical

to
the

PL
C

B
’s

continued
grow

th
and

successftil
im

plem
entation

of
2016

statute
changes

are
noted

in
the

FY
2017-18

initiatives
below

.

1W
2
0
1
7
-1

8
Initiatives

Im
plem

entation
and

continued
su

p
p
o
rt

of
the

changes
and

initiatives
resulting

from
A

cts
39,

85
and

166
of

2016
w

ill
be

a
m

ulti—
year

com
m

itm
ent

to
the

follow
ing

business
operations:

developing
1111(1

grow
ing

a
W

holesale
O

perations
division

hi
support

of
w

ine—
to—

go
sales

by
licensed,

perm
itted

private
retailers;

expanding
S

unday
store

openings
antI

hours;
im

plem
enting

and
sn

p
p
o
h
in

g
P

ennsylvania
L

o
tteiy

sales
in

m
ore

than
300

stores;
negotiating

m
ore

com
petitive

product
acquisition

costs
w

ith
w

ine
and

spirits
suppliers

on
an

ongoing
basis;

developm
ent

of
a

new
S

pecial
L

iq
u
o
r

O
rd

er
(S

L
O

)
sales

process;
developm

ent
of

a
custom

er
relationship

m
anagem

ent
(C

R
M

)
p
ro

g
ram

;
reg

u
lar

auctions
of

expired
restau

ran
t

liquor
licenses;

and
continued

licensing
support

of
n
e
w

license
types

and
processes

(w
ine

expanded
perm

its
and

reports,
direct

w
ine

shipper
licenses

and
reports,

license
surcharge,

“E
”

to
“R

”
conversions,

casino
licenses

and
other

changes).
T

hese
acts

required
changes

to
our

liccnsing
system

(PL
C

B
+

)
and

our
O

racle
system

s,
m

ost
of

w
hich

arc
expected

to
be

com
pleted

during
F

Y
2016-

17.
A

ll
o
f

the
costs

of
these

system
changes

have
not

been
com

pletely
identified

and
w

ere
not

explicitly
funded

in
the

FY
2016-17

re-budget
request.

Som
e

o
f

the
PL

C
B

’s
planned

2016-17
initiatives

w
ill

possibly
be

deferred
clue

to
staffing

and
resource

lim
itations

and
the

focus
to

im
plem

ent
the

A
ct

39
changes.

A
lthough

all
of

the
F

Y
2
0

17-18
initiatives

listed
below

(except
S

upport
Services)

w
ere

also
listed

as
FY

2016-17
projects/initiatives,

the
fluids

requested
for

FY
2017-18

do
not

reflect
any

expccted
deferm

ents
of

efforts
on

these
particular

projects.
A

s
costs

are
m

ore
clearly

qnafflified,.a
review

o
fthese

changes
and

other
FY

2016-17
projects/initiatives

w
ill

be
perform

ed
to

determ
ine

if supplem
ental

spending
authorization

is
needed

for
FY

2016-17.

T
he

PL
C

B
transferred

$1.5
m

illion
in

hands
to

D
O

S
in

FY
2015-16

for
the

capital
project

to
replace

the
N

W
O

B
’s

existing
fire

alarm
system

.
H

ow
ever

due
to

delays
w

ith
D

G
S

,
this

project
is

not
expected

to
be

started
until

2017.
D

ue
to

extended
nature

o
f

that
project,

(he
replacem

ent
o
f

the
N

W
O

B
’s

w
indow

s
($1.5M

)
is

being
deferred

until
F

Y
20

18-19.
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E
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C
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T
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T
A

L
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P
p.

E
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_________________________________________________________

FY
17-18

Initiative
$

(M
It)

Support Services
((‘OS,

RM
S

&
EBS)

3.0
*

e-C
om

m
erce

C
onsolidations

(ie
Public

Sites
E

nhancem
ents)

1.6
*

IBM
S

U
pgrade/Patching

1.5
D

ata
Insights

(R
etail/EB

S/D
ata

W
hse

R
eplacem

ent)
1.5

C
ustom

er
R

elationship
M

gm
t (CRM

)
1.5

V
ideo

Surveillance
System

(VSS)
1.5

*

R
etail

PointofSALES
(PU

S)
E

nhancem
ents

0.4
$11.0

projects/initiatives
started

in
FY

16-17

T
he

PL
C

B
rem

ains
com

m
itted

to
custom

er
service

excellence
and

social
responsibility

in
all

facets
of

our
operation

w
hile

m
aintaining

a
strong

revenue
stream

for
the

C
om

m
onw

ealth.

T
he

pri
nary

revenue
source

for
the

State
Stores

Fund
is

the
PE

C
E

‘s
sale

of
v
in

e
and

spirits.
Sales

and
tax

revenue
in

fiscal
year

2015-16
totaled

$2.431
billion,

an
increase

of$95.1
m

illion
or

4.1%
over

fiscal
year

2014-15.
Sales

for
2016-17

and
2017-18

are
projected

to
grow

atan
am

iual
com

pounded
rate

o
f

4.7%
.

G
iven

the
significant

changes
brought

about
to

P
ennsylvania’s

beverage
alcohol

m
arketplace

in
the

second
half

o
f

2016,
m

eaningfifl
long-term

sales
projections

cannot
be

m
ade

until
tim

e
allow

s
consum

er
purchase

patterns
and

sales
trends

to
change,

develop
and

be
m

easured.

T
hese

revenues
cover

the
cost

of
m

erchandise
inventory

m
aintained

and
sold

at
the

stores
and

all
costs

of
operating

the
PL

C
B

.
A

fter
paym

ent
o
fthese

operating
expenses,the

PL
C

B
generated

$583.6
m

illion
in

profit
transfers

anti
C

om
m

onw
ealth

taxes
lbr

the
G

eneral
Fund,

an
increase

of$39.0
m

illion
or

7.2%
for

fiscal
year

20
15-16.

In
addition

to
the

profit
transfer

and
taxes,

the
PL

C
B

also
covers

the
costs

of
the

PA
Slate

P
olice

B
ureau

of
L

iquor
C

ontrol
E

nforcem
ent,

w
hich

in
fiscal

year
2015-16

w
as

$26.1
m

illion
vs.

$25.7
m

illion
the

previous
year.

A
dditionally,

$3.3
m

illion
w

as
allocated

to
the

P
ennsylvania

D
epartm

ent
of

D
rug

and
A

lcohol
Program

s,
$4.6

m
illion

in
license

fees
w

as
returned

to
local

m
unicipalities,

and
$8.7

m
illion

in
local

sales
lax

w
as

collected
and

fully
rem

itted
to

Philadelphia
and

A
llegheny

counties.

A
lthough

A
ct

39
and

A
ct

85
provided

enhancem
ents

o
f

Slate
Stores

Fund
revenue

sources
through

new
licenses

and
a

Jieense
surcharge,

the
auction

of
expired

restaurant
licenses,

pricing
ficxibility

and
expanded

Sunday
sales,

they
also

decreased
State

Stores
Fund

revenues
w

ith
SL

O
m

ark
up

reductions,
the

loss
of

sales
tax

com
m

issions
and

the
threat

ofw
ine

sales
cannibalization

by
private

retailers.
A

dditionally,
A

ct
39

created
tw

o
new

grant
program

s
thnded

from
the

State
Stores

Fund.
Sonic

of
the

revenues
to

be
achieved

through
the

2016
liquor

law
changes

likely
w

on’t
be

realized8



I
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

:
P

age
#

of
G

overnor’s
E

xecutive
B

udget:

L
G

E
N

E
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
Pp.

E
32.1-E

32.8

at
all

(casino
liquor

license
revenue)

or
until

additional
tim

e
passes.

R
evenue

from
the

first
restaurant

license
auction

vil1
not

be
collected

until
near

(lie
end

of
FY

2016—
17,

it
‘viii

take
tim

e
and

continual
negotiations

to
gain

significant
concessions

through
flexible

pricing,
a

custom
er

relations
m

anagem
ent

program
w

on’t
deliver

dividends
until

FY
17—

18
or

FY
18—

19,
an

d
consum

ers’
adaptations

to
expanded

S
uiday

hours
and

P
ennsylvania

L
otlery

sales
in

Fine
W

ine
&

G
ood

Spirits
stores

w
ill

lake
tim

e
to

develop.

F
or

fiscal
year

2016-17,
the

PL
C

B
w

ill
transfer

a
com

bined
$216.4

m
illion

including
regular

profit
and

enhanced
proceeds

from
A

ct
39,

but
to

do
so

w
ill

requ
re

a
one-tim

e
w

ithdraw
al

o
f

State
Stores

Fund
cash

reserves
for

a
portion

of
the

transfer.
For

fiscal
year

20
17-18,

the
PL

C
B

plans
to

transfer
SI

85.1
m

illion
including

State
Stores

Fund
profits,

A
ct

39
enhanced

proceeds
and

Pennsylvania
L

ottery
com

m
issions.
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I
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

:
P

age
II

of
G

overnor’s
E

xecutive
B

u
d
g

e
t:

L
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
Pp.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
.

1.
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
—

P
erform

ance
M

easures

T
he

m
ost

effective
program

perform
ance

m
easures

used
by

the
L

iquor
C

ontro[
B

oard
are

those
that

report
the

financial
results

o
f

the
business

enterprise
w

e
operate.

M
onthly

financial
statem

ents
prepared

in
accordance

w
ith

G
enerally

A
ccepted

A
ccounting

Principles
provide

inform
ation

on
gross

sales,
taxes

collected,
cost

o
f

goods
sold,

operating
expenses,

and
net

incom
e.

T
hose

financial
results

are
m

easured
against

established
goals,

review
ed

by
m

anagem
ent,

and
appropriate

action
taken.

W
ith

the
E

R
P

-based
operating

system
,

the
B

oard
has

developed
dashboard

m
easures

and
key

perform
ance

indicators
that

enhance
the

B
oard’s

ability
to

control
expense

grow
th

through
increased

visibility
O

LI variances
from

planned
expense

and
revenue

goals
as

w
ell

as
having

the
necessary

data
stream

to
m

axim
ize

returns
on

product
investm

ent
and

placem
ent.N

ew
tools

have
been

developed
for

im
proved

forecasting
of

incom
e

and
cash

flow
.

In
addition

to
financial

inform
ation,

various
other

perform
ance

m
easures

are
regularly

reported
to

PL
C

B
operating

m
anagers.

Increased
use

of
business

ratios,
such

as
E

xpense
to

N
et

Sales
and

Sales
pcr

Square
Foot,

are
utilized

for
com

parative
purposes

w
ith

increased
em

phasis
on

m
arket

im
pact

of
store

relocations,
closings

and
openings

to
m

axim
ize

service
level

to
the

custom
er

base.
C

om
parative

m
easures

are
utilized

to
m

onitor
daily

store
perform

ance
by

tracking
sales

challenges,
inventory

shrink
and

other
m

easures.
M

odels
have

been
developed

to
analyze

the
effectiveness

of
our

advertising
expenditure

allow
ing

us
to

m
axim

ize
advertising

benefits.

T
he

PL
C

B
devotes

significant
resources

to
im

prove
the

efficiency
o
f

regulatory
services

to
licensees.

Program
perform

ance
m

easures
used

include
the

num
ber

o
f

applications
processed,

turnaround
tim

e,
inquiries

handled
personally

or
by

telephone,
fees

processed
and

detailed
m

onitoring
of

investigative
activities.

O
ur

alcohol
education

and
abuse

prevention
program

s
continue

to
grow

and
im

prove.
M

easures
of

program
perform

ance
include

the
num

ber
of

ow
ners/m

anagers/servers
com

pleting
R

esponsible
A

lcohol
M

anagem
ent

T
raining

(R
A

M
P)

sem
inars

and
num

ber
of

alcohol
education

m
aterials

distributed
to

the
targets

o
fo

u
r

various
alcohol

education
program

s
as

w
ell

as
definable

m
easurem

ents
for

activities
funded

through
our

grant
program

s.

10
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N
E

R
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L
O

P
E

R
A

T
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N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32J-E

32.8

V
.2.

R
ecen

t
L

eg
islativ

e
C

IIan
2

cs
—

A
ct

39
afl(I

A
ct

85
o

f
2
0
1
6

A
ct

39
of2016

m
acIc

historic
relbrm

s
to

the
Peim

sylvania
L

iquor
C

ode
and

represents
the

m
ost

expansive
change

to
the

state’s
liquor

law
s

since
the

end
of

P
rohibition.

From
product

procurem
ent

and
m

arketing,
to

w
holesale

operations
and

licensing,
A

ct
39

transform
ed

the
PL

C
B

and
the

alcoholic
beverage

industry
in

Pennsylvania.
W

ith
o
n
ly

60
days

to
establish

the
necessary

infrastrncture
and

policies,
(he

PL
C

B
im

m
ediately

sct
to

w
ork

to
ensure

the
A

ct
w

as
quickly

and
successftilly

im
plem

ented.

G
iven

the
significant

breadth
of

the
A

ct
39

reform
s

across
the

business
and

regulatory
areas

of
the

agency,
the

PL
C

B
recognized

the
need

for
organizational

changes
to

effectively
m

anage
resources

and
align

our
agency

structure
w

ith
the

opportunities
provided

by
the

A
ct.T

he
PL

C
B

established
a

Program
M

anagem
ent

O
ffice

and
contracted

w
ith

a
project

m
anager

to
track

tasks,
budgets

and
progress

for
each

A
ct

39
deliverable.

A
new

O
ffice

of
W

holesale
O

perations
w

as
created

to
m

anage
the

new
vine-to-go

w
holesale

business.
W

e
contracted

w
ith

a
consultant

to
advise

the
agency

on
the

developm
ent

and
im

plem
entation

of
pricing

policies,and
w

e
hired

a
full—

tim
e

pricing
coordinator

to
m

anage
and

execute
pricing

strategies
and

to
assist

the
product

selection
category

m
anagers

in
supplier

negotiations.
W

e
hired

a
consultant

to
assist

the
agency

w
ith

developing
its

custom
er

relationship
m

anagem
ent

(C
R

M
)

program
.

I.
L

IC
E

N
S

E
A

P
P

L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

B
efore

a
single

bottle
of

w
ine

could
be

shipped
under

the
new

direct
v
in

e
shipper

license
or

sold
under

a
w

ine
expanded

perm
it,

the
PL

C
B

had
to

create
the

licensing
applications

for
all

new
licenses

and
perm

its
that

the
act

created.
Prior

to
the

billbeing
signed

into
law

,the
PL

C
B

began
a

transition
to

an
online

regulatory
and

licensing
system

,
know

n
as

PL
C

B
+

,
w

hich
allow

s
licensees

to
apply

for
perm

its
and

licenses
24/7

and
has

m
ade

the
application

process
paperless.

T
he

m
yriad

of
licensing

changes
m

ade
by

A
ct

39
required

tcchnical
m

odifications
to

PL
C

B
+.

T
he

PL
C

B
’s

B
ureau

o
f

L
icensing

coordinated
w

ith
our

vendor,
C

om
putronix,

to
m

ake
all

the
necessary

changes
before

the
effective

date
o
f

the
A

ct
w

ithout
any

disruption
to

current
licensing

operations.

O
n

A
ugust

8,
2016,

the
effective

date
o
f

the
A

ct,
L

icensing
began

accepting
applications

through
PL

C
B

+
for

w
ine

expanded
perm

its,
direct

vine
shipper

licenses,
eating

place
license

conversions,
casino

liquor
licenses,

and
a

num
ber

o
f

new
perm

its
for

P
ennsylvania

producers.
T

he
task

then
turned

to
evaluating,

investigating
and

approving
all

of
these

new
perm

its
and

licenses.
T

he
efficiencies

created
by

PL
C

B
+-helpcd

to
ensure

prom
pt

im
plem

entation
ofthe

licensing
provisions

ofA
ct

39.

It
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A
s

ofF
ebnm

ry
17,

2017,
the

tally
of

m
ajor

new
license

and
perm

it
applications

is:

o
W

ine
E

xpanded
Perm

its:
414

applications
received

and
380

issued
o

D
irect

W
ine

Shipper
L

icenses:
907

applications
received

and
854

issued
•

C
asino

L
iquor

L
icenses:

0
applications

received
a

E
ating

place
license

conversions:
36

applications
received

an
d

3
1

approved

U
.

W
IN

E
E

X
P

A
N

D
E

D
P

E
R

M
IT

S
I

W
H

O
L

E
S

A
L

E
O

PE
R

A
T

IO
N

S

T
he

advent
o
fw

ine-to-go
sales

by
perm

it
holders

created
a

new
vine

w
holesale

business
for

the
PL

C
B

.T
he

agency
established

the
O

ffice
ofW

holesale
O

perations
to

act
as

a
liaison

to
holders

o
f

w
ine

expanded
perm

its.
In

addition
to

a
director,

this
office

consists
of

three
w

holesale
business

developers
w

ho
m

anage
the

w
holesale

business
accounts

and
serve

as
a

resource
to

address
the

needs
of our

w
holesale

custom
ers.

hi
early

A
ugust2016,

the
PL

C
B

started
m

eeting
w

ith
grocery

chains
to

begin
collaboratively

planning
for

w
ine-to-go

sales
across

Peim
sylvania.

A
s

a
result

of
these

m
eetings,

a
pilot

program
w

as
developed

to
test

and
refine

processes
for

forecasting
product

needs,
planning

replenishm
ent

orders
and

delivering
w

ine.

C
urrently,

W
holesale

O
perations

is
coflaboratively

w
orking

w
ith

holders
of

w
ine

expanded
perm

its,
including

approxim
ately

173
grocery

stores
and

21
convenience

stores
currently

selling
w

ine-to-go.
B

ased
on

sales
data

through
F

ebruary
18,

approxim
ately

2
m

illion
units

of
w

ine
have

been
sold

to
perm

it
holders,

representing
alm

ost
$22

m
illion

in
sales.

Planning
is

the
key

to
success

as
the

PL
C

B
adjusts

its
product

procurem
ent

plais
to

accom
m

odate
both

its
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

retail
custom

ers
and

w
ine

expanded
perm

it
holders.

T
he

PL
C

B
’s

L
icensee

O
nline

O
rder

Portal
(L

O
O

P)
and

the
L

icensee
D

elivery
Program

(L
D

P),
both

developed
in

2015,
are

essential
to

efficiently
serving

our
licensed

custom
ers.

L
icensees.

.stibtit
orders

through
L

O
O

P,
w

hich
can

be
done

online
24/7

at
the

convenience
ofthe

licensee.
W

holesale
custom

ers
receive

product
either

by
direct

delivery
from

a
PL

C
B

distribution
center

o
r

by
designating

a
L

icensee
Service

C
enter

as
the

pick-tip
location.

Further,
in

partnership
w

ith
one

of
the

licensed
grocery

store
chains,

the
PL

C
B

piloted
a

bacH
m

ul
program

that
allow

s
a

w
holesale

custom
er

to
pick

up
product

at
a

PL
C

B
distribution

center
and

route
it

through
their

supply
chain.

T
his

program
reduces

transportation
costs

and
adds

efficiencies
for

both
the

PL
C

B
and

the
w

holesale
custom

er.
T

his
is

just
one

exam
ple

of
how

the
agency

is
collaborating

w
ith

our
custom

ers
to

im
prove

processes
and

efficiency.
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SU
N

D
A
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L
E

S

A
ct

39
allow

s
the

PL
C

B
to

open
as

m
any

o
f

its
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

stores
on

Sundays
as

deem
ed

appropriate,
and

it
gave

the
agency

com
plete

discretion
over

hours
o
f

operation.
B

efore
A

ct
39,

the
PL

C
B

could
0111)’open

25%
of

its
stores

on
Sundays,

and
only

from
n

o
o
n

to
5

p.m
.

T
he

PL
C

B
has

aggressively
m

oved
to

enhance
consum

er
convenience

through
the

opening
of

additional
stores

on
Sundays.

Prior
to

A
ct

39,
w

e
operated

188
stores

on
Sundays.

T
hat

num
ber

now
stands

at
331

as
of

February
21,

2017,
representing

m
ore

than
50%

of the
PL

C
B

’s
stores.

Further,
(lie

PL
C

B
has

expanded
S

unday
store

hours
at

those
locations

to
II

a.m
.

to
7

p.m
.

W
ew

ill
assess

w
hether

additional
locations

and
expanded

hours
are

necessary
in

the
ftiw

re,
especially

during
the

busy
holiday

season,
to

accom
m

odate
dem

and
and

enhance
consum

er
convenience.

IV
.

L
O

Y
F

E
R

Y
SA

L
E

S

T
he

sale
o
f

P
ennsylvania

L
ottery

tickets
at

Fine
W

ine
&

G
ood

Spirits
stores

w
as

also
authorized

by
A

ct
39.

T
he

PL
C

R
acted

rapidly
to

establish
the

necessary
infrastructure

to
im

plem
ent

this
provision.

T
he

PL
C

B
began

discussions
w

ith
the

Pennsylvania
L

ottery
in

2015
to

develop
the

necessary
requirem

ents
and

procedures
in

anticipation
of legislative

authorization
to

perm
it

lottery
sales.

C
onsequently,

the
PL

C
B

w
as

w
ell-positioned

to
quickly

execute
this

opportunity.
A

s
a

result,
as

o
f F

ebruary
21,

2017,
there

w
ere

312
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

stores
w

ith
L

ottery
m

achines.
P

roceeds
from

L
ottery

sales
are

deposited
initially

into
the

State
Stores

Fund
and

arc
then

subsequently
transferred

to
the

G
eneral

Fund.

V
.

D
W

E
C

T
SH

IPM
E

N
T

O
F

W
IN

E

A
ct

39
allow

s
in-state

and
out-of-state

w
ine

producers
obtaining

a
direct

w
ine

shipper
license

to
sell

and
deliver

up
to

36
cases

o
fany

vine
per

year
to

a
resident’s

hom
e

o
r

business
address

for
his

or
her

personal
consum

ption.
A

s
ofFebruary

17,2017,
854

licenses
had

been
issu

e
d

to
both

in-state
and

out-of-state
w

ine
producers.

D
irect

w
ine

shipm
ents

are
subject

to
the

6%
sales

tax
and

a
$2.50

per
gallon

W
ine

E
xcise

T
ax.

Pursuant
to

A
ct

39,
proceeds

from
the

W
ine

E
xcise

T
ax

are
paid

directly
to

the
D

epartm
ent

ofR
evenue

by
the

licensee,
(i.e.

-
the

taxes
do

notpass
through

the
State

Stores
Fund).

13



I E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

Pauc
#

of
G

overnor’s
E

xecutlye
B

m
lget:

[çp
N

E
R

A
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
P

p.
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A
ct

39
of 2016,

and
subsequently

A
ct

85,provided
the

PL
C

B
w

ith
the

authority
to

auction
about

1,200
restaurant

licenses
that

expired
or

lapsed
since

the
year

2000.
A

ct
85

gave
the

PL
C

B
the

discretion
to

decide
how

and
w

hen
these

auctions
should

be
conducted.

T
he

first
auction

w
as

publicly
announced

in
Septem

ber.
T

he
auction

w
as

conducted
through

a
sealed

bid
process

and
consisted

of40
licenses

in
21

different
counties.

T
he

sealed
bids

w
ere

publicly
opened

on
O

ctober
31,

2016.
B

ids
w

ere
received

for
37

of
the

40
licenses.

N
otices

of
Selection

w
ere

sent
out

to
the

highest
bidders,

w
ho

had
until

m
id-N

ovem
ber

to
subm

it
bid

paym
ents

or
w

ithdraw
and

allow
the

PL
C

B
to

proceed
to

the
second

highest
bidder.

W
inning

bids
ranged

from
$51,500

for
a

license
in

Som
erset

C
ounty

to
$556,000

for
a

license
in

C
um

berland
C

ounty.
A

ssum
ing

that
all

31
license

applications
are

received
and

approved,
approxim

ately
$7.79

m
illion

in
revenue

w
ill

com
e

out
of escrow

and
be

deposited
into

the
State

Stores
F

u
n
d

and
then

subsequently
transferred

to
the

G
eneral

Fund.
-

A
second

auction
is

planned
for

M
arch

2017.
T

his
auction

w
ill

include
50

expired
licenses

in
48

counties
from

a
m

ore
diverse

selection
ofcounties

to
test

the
m

arkets
in

those
respective

locations.
B

ids
are

due
M

arch
3,2017,

and
the

w
inners

w
ill

be
determ

ined
the

follow
ing

w
eek.

T
he

initial
auctions

are
intended

to
test

the
license

m
arketplace

in
the

various
counties

and
determ

ine
how

the
licenses

w
ere

received,
as

w
ell

as
the

process
itself.T

he
PL

C
B

did
notw

ant
to

flood
the

m
arket

w
ith

too
m

any
licenses

atonce
and

risk
the

devaluation
ofcurrentlicenses,or

fijI
to

m
axim

ize
the

financial
return

to
the

C
om

m
onw

ealth
from

the
auction.

V
II.

PR
IC

IN
G

Prior
to

A
cts

39
and

85,
the

L
iquor

C
ode

lim
ited

the
ability

ofthe
PL

C
B

to
use

its
econom

ies
ofscale

—
as

one
ofthe

largest
buyers

of w
ines

and
spirits

iii
the

w
orld

—
to

negotiate
product

acquisition
costs

or
assess

different
m

arkups
on

products.
T

hese
restrictions

on
pricing

largely
stem

m
ed

from
the

provision
in

the
L

iquor
C

ode
that

m
andated

a
propoitional

m
arkup

on
item

s
sold

by
the

PL
C

B
.

A
s

a
result

of
the

propoitional
pricing

provision,
the

PL
C

B
w

as
required

to
apply

an
equal

percentage
m

arkup
across

its
product

portfolio.
For

listed
item

s
sold

in
our

stores,
suppliers

used
the

uniform
m

arkup
structure

to
w

ork
backw

ard
from

their
m

anufacturer’s
suggested

retail
price

(M
SR

P)
to

arrive
at

the
product

acquisition
costs

quoted
to

the
PL

C
B

.
A

cquisition
costs

w
ere

not
negotiated

atall,
and

the
foniiulaic

approach
favored

suppliers
w

ho
w

ere
able

to
m

anipulate
the

form
ula.

A
cts

39
and

85
provided

exceptions
to

the
proportional

pricing
m

andate
the

PL
C

B
’s

best-selling,
lim

ited
purchase,

and
discontinued

item
s.

A
ct

39
authorized

the
PL

C
B

to
“price

its
best-selling

item
s

and
lim

ited
purchase

item
s

in
a

m
anner

that
m

axim
izes

the
return

on
the

sale
of

those
item

s.”
A

ct
85

further
defined

“best-selling
item

s”
as

“the
150

m
ostsold

brands
and

product
types

ofw
ine

and
the

150
m

ostsold
brands

and
product

types
ofliquor

as
m

easured
by

the
total

num
ber

of
units

sold
on

a
six-m

onth
basis

calculated
every

January
1

and
July

1.”
T

he
150

best-selling
item

s,
as

defined
by

A
ct

85,
include

86
percent

of
the

PL
C

B
w

ine
portfolio

and
91

percent
of

the
spirits

portfolio
(by

unit
sates).

T
hese

provisions
allow

our
buyers

to
individually

negotiate
product

acquisition
costs

and
retail

shelfprices
w

ith
suppliers

to
m

axim
ize

financial
returns

to
the

C
om

m
onw

ealth
and

achieve
m

ore
com

petitive
retail

prices.
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32.1-E
32.8

PL
C

B
product

selection
category

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

conducted
individual

m
eetings

w
ith

m
ore

than
80

suppliers
of

products
eligible

for
flexible

pricing
under

A
cts

39
and

85.
T

hese
m

eetings
consisted

o
fa

review
of

the
changes

in
the

L
iquor

C
ode

resulting
from

A
cts

39
and

85;
discussion

of
the

opportunities
for

volum
etric

sales
grow

th;
and

an
exam

ination
of

each
supplier’s

portfolio
of

item
s

eligible
for

flexible
pricing

w
ith

regard
to

product
acquisition

costs,
sales

volum
e

and
retail

price.
C

ategory
m

anagers
asked

each
supplicr

to
consider

low
ering

costs
for

each
item

identified
as

having
opportunity

for
a

reduced
cost

based
on

analysis
ofthe

data
w

e
obtained.

C
onversations

included
discussion

o
fhow

to
achieve

these
reductions

through
m

arketing
plan

changes,
sale

price
allow

ance
adjustm

ents
and

innovative
m

arketing
to

achieve
sales

grow
th.

T
he

PL
C

B
approached

each
pricing

m
eeting

and
negotiation

as
a

collaborative
pailncrship

w
ith

each
supplier,

seeking
to

establish
costs

that
are

fair
to

alt
parties.

E
ach

supplier
w

as
asked

to
form

ally
respond

to
our

request
for

low
er

costs.
W

hile
m

any
suppliers

em
braced

the
new

pricing
law

s
and

have
negotiated

costs
in

good
faith,

som
e

refused
to

respond
to

the
PL

C
B

’s
initial

negotiations,
including

som
e

o
f

the
state’s

largest
vendors

of
top-selling

products.
A

s
a

result,
the

B
oard

m
em

bers
look

the
next

step
of

individually
m

eeting
w

ith
these

suppliers
to

discuss
pricing

and
engage

in
m

eaningful
dialogue

on
reducing

acquisition
costs.

T
he

PL
C

B
w

ill,
on

a
perpew

al
basis,

negotiate
w

ith
all

suppliers
subject

to
flexible

pricing
in

order
to

achieve
low

er
cost

of
goods

w
hile

achieving
com

petitive
pricing

and
m

axim
izing

C
om

m
onw

ealth
revenue.

W
ith

regard
to

item
s

ordered
via

Special
L

iquor
O

rder
(SL

O
),

A
ct

39
capped

the
PL

C
B

’s
m

arkup
on

such
item

s
to

not
m

ore
than

10%
of

the
cost

of
acquisition.

For
the

licensees,
the

A
ct

also
rem

oved
the

statutory
10%

discount
that

licensees
receive

for
such

purchases.
In

accordance
w

ith
the

provisions
o
f

A
ct

39,
the

PL
C

B
changed

the
prices

in
its

system
for

SL
O

item
s

effective
A

ugust
8,

2016.

V
III.

F
U

T
U

R
E

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

T
w

o
significant

provisions
of

A
ct

39
are

planned
for

future
im

plem
entation:

(1)
the

creation
of

a
ensL

om
er

relationship
m

anagem
ent

(U
R

M
)

program
;

and
(2)

the
developm

ent
of

a
new

special
liquor

order
(SL

O
)

platform
that

accom
m

odates
direct

delivery
from

suppliers.

A
ct

39
specifically

allow
s

the
PL

C
B

to
develop

a
custom

er
relationslup

m
anagem

ent
(C

R
M

)
program

,
w

hich
often

incentivizes
m

em
bership

and
grow

s
sales

through
loyally

program
s

and
coupons.

T
he

PL
C

B
is

currently
evaluating

options
in

developing
a

C
R

M
program

for
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits.

T
he

PL
C

B
w

ill
also

be
com

pleting
the

developm
ent

of
a

new
system

for
processing

Special
L

iquor
O

rders
(SL

O
s).

A
ct

39
lim

ited
the

PL
C

B
’s

m
arkup

on
SLO

.item
s

to
10%

of
the

cost
o
f

the
item

,
and

also
allow

ed
orders

to
be

sent
directly

to
the

custom
er

rallier
than

requiring
SL

O
s

to
be

picked
up

from
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

stores.
T

he
new

SL
O

platform
w

ill
replace

the
current

system
in

w
hich

SL
O

s
are

placed
by

individual
consum

ers
or

vendors
by

phone
or

directly
at

a
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

store.
It

w
ill

also
allow

,
in

accordance
w

ith
A

ct
39,

shipm
ent

of
SL

O
orders

directly
to

the
custom

er
if the

vendor
pcrm

fts
delivery.

-
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E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
u

d
g
e
t:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
I.

E
X

P
L

A
N

A
T

IO
N

O
F

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
(S

A
m

ounts
in

thousands)

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
1.

Increased
finding

for
cost

of
C

om
m

onw
ealth-negotiated

em
ployee

direct
and

indirect
com

pensation
22,084

S
ubtotal

—
P

ersonnel
C

hange:
22,084

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
1.

Increased
ftm

ding
for

assorled
operational

expenses
including

freight,
store

rent,
and

credit/debit
card

fees
8,763

S
ubtotal

—
O

perating
E

xpense
C

hange:
8,763

F
IX

E
D

A
S

S
E

T
S

1.
S

lightly
decreased

finding
for

inform
ation

teclm
ology

capital
spending

(367)
S

ubtotal
—

F
ixed

A
sset

C
hange:

(367)
G

R
A

N
T

S
I.

Increased
funding

request
for

A
lcohol

E
ducation

G
rants

to
Schools

and
M

unicipalities
1,700

S
ubtotal

—
G

rants
C

hange
1,700

S
tate

S
tores

F
und

-
T

otal
C

hange:
132,1801

V
II.

O
T

H
E

R
IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

1.
F

Y
2015-16

O
bligations—

T
here

w
as

no
carty

o
v
ero

fF
Y

15-16
obligations

into
FY

16-17.
2.

FY
2016-17

S
upplem

ental
A

uthorization
—

N
o

request
for

supplem
ental

funding
for

FY
16-17

has
occurred

as
of

February
15,2017.

3.
R

estricted
R

eceipts
—

N
o

restricted
receipts

are
received

or
budgeted

for
the

general
operations

ofthe
L

iquor
C

ontrol
B

oard.
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E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

II
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

Pp.
E

32J-E
32,8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16

2015-16
63002655

$
188,264.00

S
killN

et
Solutions, Inc.

Provide
installation,

configuration,
1151

Sonora
C

ourt,
S

u
le

2
and

deploym
entservices

for
Sunnyvale,

C
A

94086
O

racLe
R

etail
P

oint
of S

ervice
solution

2015-16
63009040

$
832,063.69

D
eloitte

C
onsulting

L
L

P
U

pdate
O

racle
application

stack
300

C
orporate

C
enter

D
rive

to
the

latest
available

approved
C

am
p

H
ill,

PA
17011-1760

patch
and

provide
ongoing

2015-16
63009401

$
70,623.00

Pennsylvania
State

U
niversity

E
nergy

and
engineering

surveys
Facilities

E
ngineering

Services
to

im
prove

energy
m

anagem
ent

U
niversity

Park,
PA

16802
for

PL
C

B
ow

ned
and

leased
sites

application
support

services

2015-t6
63009409

$
13,500.00

H
ealthier

R
esources

Inc.
O

perational/U
T

R
eporting

and
2

[1
W

.
M

atthew
s

Suite
203

C
om

m
unications

L
ead

to
serve

M
atthew

s, N
C

28105-1310
as

a
Subject M

ailer
E

xpert
during

the
O

racle
U

pgrade
project

2015-16
63009668

$
467,645.48

M
om

entum
,

Inc.
D

eliver
and

m
onitor

w
eb

based
2120

M
arket

St.,
Suite

100
training

through
subscription

C
am

p
H

ill,
PA

17011
based

w
eb

application
for

bars,
clubs,

and
restaurants

2015-16
63010541

S
219,149.85

A
vantce

RST,
L

L
C

Provide
support,

upgrades,
and

other
1111

B
roadhollow

R
d.,

Suite
100

services
for

R
obocom

Inventory
Farm

ingdale,
N

Y
11735-4819

M
anagem

ent
System

sofiw
are,

h
ard

w
are,

and
equipm

ent
at

the
PL

C
B

’s
three

D
istribution

C
enters
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R
&

E
U

T
Iv

E
A

U
’rH

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

I
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
P

p.
E

32.1-E
32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

2015-16
63010878

$
55,666.00

A
A

M
V

A
N

etw
ork

connectivity
through

4301
W

ilson
B

lvd.,
Ste.400

online
data

exchange
through

A
rlington,

V
A

22203-1867
A

A
M

V
A

’s
V

A
N

enabling
secure

electronic
transm

ission
o
f

Liquor
purchase

orders
to

liquor
vendors

2015-16
63011078

$
96,000.00

G
rinsfelder

Softw
are

C
om

pany
Provide

a
m

ulti-tiered
w

ine
and

D
B

A
W

inecom
iect,

Inc
spirits

data
services

for
all

1330
Q

uincy
St.N

E
,

Suite
301

PL
C

B
products

M
nw

capohs,
M

N
55413-1

541

2015-16
63011124

$
891,759.28

A
C

I
W

orldw
ide

C
orp.

Softw
are

license
for

paym
ent

sw
itch

6060
C

oventry
D

rive
services

and
recurring

costs
for

E
lkhom

,N
E

68022
debit,

credit
and

gift
cards

2015-16
63011140

$
14,000.00

C
B

C
C

Support
for

C
ustom

s
softw

are
P.

0
.

B
ox

2447
-

enabling
C

om
ptroller

to
transm

it
B

oothw
yn,

PA
1906

1-8447
L

C
B

im
port

product
shipm

ent
data

to
H

om
eland

Security
-

and
FD

A
for

clearance

2015-16
63011180

$
7,425.60

D
ell

M
arketing,

L
P

Softw
are

assurance
for

M
icrosoft

4319
C

ollections
C

enter
D

r.
V

L
A

C
enter

C
onfiguration

M
anager.

C
hicago,

IL
60093-0001

A
ssess

deploy
and

update
servers

and
devices

18



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
age

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

P
p.

E
32.I-E

32.8

W
il.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

C
om

putronix
U

SA
,

Inc
3900

5.
W

adsw
orth

B
lvd.

Suite
510

L
akew

ood,
C

O
80235-2208

D
eloitte

C
onsulting

L
L

P
300

C
oij

orate
C

enter
D

rive
C

am
p

H
ill,

PA
17011-1760

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

200
S.B

road
St.,

lO
u’

Floor
Philadelphia,

PA
19102

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

200
S.

B
road

St.,
10”’F

loor
Philadelphia,

PA
19102

Provide
scalable,

hosted
R

egulatory
A

fibirs
softw

are
system

that
is

a
single

gatew
ay

for
businesses

and
individuals

to
apply

for
and

m
anage

beverage
alcohol

licenses
and

perm
its.

Provide
E

R
P

controls
validation

services

O
versee

production
and

associated
costs

for
radio

advertisem
ents

by
third

party
com

panies

H
oliday’

advertising
cam

paign
planning

and
reporting

2015-16
63012322

$
2,027,204.26

201
5-16

63012837
$

29,000.00

2015-16
63013294

$
$74,794.96

2015-16
63013356

$
2,656.00

2015-16
63013422

$
40,941.00

C
liflonL

arsonA
llen,

L
L

P
945

E.
Park

D
rive,

Suite
202

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2804

M
igrate

PL
C

B
applications

to
O

A
D

ata
C

enters

19



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

II
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

L
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
Pp.

E
32.l-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(c

o
n
tin

u
e
d
)

2015-16
63013564

$
42,500.00

V
erifone,

Inc.
Provide

consulting
and

know
ledge

4060
Solutions

C
en

ter
transfer

services
to

m
aintain,

L
ockbox

774060
supportand

m
onitor

enterprise
C

hicago,
IL

60677-4000
PIN

pads
as

part
o
f

the
m

andated
Point

of
Service

upgrade

2015-16
63013700

$
34,460.34

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
design,develop,

and
im

plem
ent

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

databases
to

support
E

R
P

and
Point

o
f

Service
environm

ents

2015-16
63013714

$
1,032,076.00

SkilIN
et

Solutions,
Inc.

Provide
O

racle
E

R
P

production
11

51
Sonora

C
ourt,

Suite
2

support
and

e:U
rnnceinent

services
Sunnyvale,

C
A

94086
for

PL
C

B
Point

o
f

Sale
O

perations

20
15-16

63013716
$

968,750.00
K

PM
G

,
L

L
P

Provide
O

racle
E

R
P

production
30

N
.

T
hird

Street,
Stute

200
support

and
enhancem

ent
services

H
arrisburg,

PA
17101

for
PL

C
B

financial
operations

2015-16
63013717

$
2,051,923.17

D
eloitte

C
onsulting

L
L

P
Provide

O
racle

production
300

C
orporate

C
enter

D
rive

support
and

enhancem
ent

services
C

am
p

H
ill,

PA
17011-1760

2015-16
63013725

$
105,230.00

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

S
taffaugm

entalion
senior

program
470

Friendship
R

oad
m

anager
to

assist
w

ith
changes

to
H

arrisburg,
P

A
17111-2103

eC
om

m
erce

site

20



flE
c
U

T
W

E
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

:
P

age
#

o
f

G
ovcrnor’s

E
xecutive

B
u
d

g
et:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

201
5-16

(
o
iitiiu

ie
d
)

2015-16
63013738

$
111,469.16

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Provide
assistance

to
load

product
470

Friendship
R

oad
im

ages
into

the
O

racle
R

etail
I-Iarrisburg,

PA
[7111-2103

M
anagem

ent
S

ystem

2015-16
63013772

S
88,378.52

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
design,

develop,
and

im
plem

ent
H

arrisburg,
PA

17111-2103
databases

to
support

E
M

’
and

Point
of

Service
environm

ents
2015-16

63013773
$

86,698.32
C

om
puter

A
id,

[nc
Provide

a
database

adm
inistrator

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
design,

develop,and
im

plem
ent

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

databases
to

support
E

R
P

and
Point

of
Service

environm
ents

2015-16
63013774

$
86698.32

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

D
atabase

assistance
for

470
Friendship

R
oad

the
training

environm
ent

to
support

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

PL
C

B
training

academ
ies

2015-16
63013775

$
49,846.36

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

to
470

Friendship
R

oad
support

the
E

M
’,

P
oint

of
Service

H
arrisburg,P

A
17111-2103

and
w

arehouse
environm

ents

2015-16
630137767

$
95,900.32

C
oL

uputerA
id,

Inc.
A

relutect
to

design,
470

Friendship
R

oad
develop

and
im

plem
ent

H
arrisburg,

P
A

17111-2103
application

infrastructure
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P
aue

#
of

G
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E
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B
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G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(c

o
n
tin

u
e
d
)

2015-16
63013778

$
156,388.75

T
icrney

&
Partners,

Inc.
Strategic

m
edia

consulting
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

and
eithaneccl

digital
experience

200
S.

B
road

St.,
10”

Floor
lhr

the
Fine

W
ine

&
G

ood
Spirits

Philadelphia,
P

A
19102

brand

2015-16
63013868

$
73,395.00

‘fierney
&

Partners,
Inc.

Strategic
and

execution
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

nuinications
support

for
social

m
edia

200
S.

B
ioad

St.,.I
0cI

Floor
planning

and
outreach

Philadelphia,
PA

19102

2015-16
63013945

S
77,854.10

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Senior
data

architect
to

470
Friendship

R
oad

plan,
execute,

and
configure

the
J-larrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

O
racle

R
etail

M
anagem

entSystem
E

nterprise
D

ata
Q

uality
P

roduct
D

ata
Parsing

and
S

tandardization
M

odule
to

expand
cleansing

current
data

2015-16
63013985

$
301,680.00

V
enger

C
onsulting,

L
L

C
Provide

O
racle

and
business

6807
Sparkling

W
ay

expertise
regarding

the
P

L
C

B
’s

W
esley

C
hapel,FL

33545-4383
O

racle
installation

2015-16
63013996

$
11,205.00

A
ppalachia

T
echnologies

A
ssistance

in
configuration

5012
L

enker
Street

and
adm

inistration
ofP

L
C

B
’s

M
echanicsburg,

PA
17050

internal
netw

orks

2
2
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G
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E

xecutive
B
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L
G

E
N

E
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
Pp.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

2015-16
63013997

$
62,472.87

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Product
specialist

for
470

Friendship
R

oad
the

deploym
ent

o
f

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

Paym
ent

C
ard

and
P

oint
o
f

Service
upgrade

rollout
and

support
post

deploym
ent

activities

2015-16
63013999

$
103,125.40

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Senior
program

m
anager

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
assist

w
ith

changes
to

the
H

arrisburg,
PA

17111-2103
PL

C
B

’S
eC

onunerce
site

2015-16
63014038

$
74,513.25

T
ieraey

&
Partners,

Inc.
Prepare

reports
and

O
B

A
T

iem
ey

C
om

m
unications

conduct
research

to
m

onitor
200

S.
B

road
St.,

10”
F

loor
PL

C
B

advertising
Philadelphia,

PA
19L02

2015-16
63014045

$
57,124.00

T
iem

ey
&

Partners,
Inc.

O
versee

production
and

associated
D

B
A

T
iem

ey
C

om
m

unications
costs

for
ra

d
io

advertisem
ents

by
200

S.
B

road
St.,

1
0

”
F

loor
third

party
com

panies
P

hiladelphia,
PA

19102

2015-16
63014153

$
3,477.64

D
ell

M
arketing,

L
P

Provide
standard

support
4319

C
ollections

C
enter

D
r.

for
PL

C
B

R
ed

H
at

L
inux

C
hicago,

IL
60093-0001

servers

2015-16
63014169

$
55,197.38

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Provide
assistance

to
the

470
Friendship

R
oad

existing
netw

ork
m

anagem
ent

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

staffw
ilh

troubleshooting
tasks

23



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

4
of

G
overnor’s

E
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B
u

d
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G
E

N
E

R
A

L
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P
E
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T
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N
S
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G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

$
59,158.65

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

470
Friendship

R
oad

H
arrisburg,

PA
17111-2103

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

200
S.

B
road

St.,
tO

”
Floor

Philadelphia,
PA

19102

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

R
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

2
0
0
3
.

B
road

St.,
10”

F
loor

Philaclelplna,
PA

19102

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

R
A

T
ieriiey

C
om

m
unications

200
S.

B
road

St.,
JO

”
Floor

P
hiladelphia,

PA
19102

TEA
JvI

Inform
atics,

Inc.
3900

N
orthw

oods
D

rive
Suite

350
A

rdcn
H

ills,
M

N
55112

Support
for

O
racle

R
etail

Sales
A

udit,
C

ash
M

anagem
ent

and
Financial

m
odules

Plan
and

im
plem

ent
1-loliday

advertising
and

public
relations

cam
paigns

Provide
a

third—
party

firm
to

conduct
a

brand
engagem

ent
benchm

ark
study

for
Fine

X
V

ine
and

G
ood

Spirits
B

rand

O
versee

third-party
com

panies
to

produce
professional

studio
quality

video
productions

to
m

eet
PL

C
B

m
arketing

objectives

Provide
assistance

in
m

anaging
evidence

for
the

P
aym

ent
C

ard
Industry’s

aim
ual

audit

O
racle

W
ebC

entcr
contentsupport

for
the

PL
C

B
’s

w
ebsites

and
w

eb
applications

2015-16
63014245

2015-16
63014259

2015-16
63014260

2015-16
63014262

2015-16

2015-16
63014305

$
419,979.55

$
37,525.00

$
110,003.00

63014295
$

35,000.00

$
33750.00

A
ppalachia

T
echnologies

5012
L

enker
S

treet
M

echanicsburg,
PA

17050

2
4
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O

T
A

L
)

V
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C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

P
age

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

P
0.

E
32.1-E

32.8

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

Protech
Professional

T
echnical

610
S

catty
R

oad
M

onroeville,P
A

15146-1558

Protech
Professional

T
echnical

610
S

catty
R

oad
M

om
oeville,

PA
15

146-1558

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

R
A

T
ierney

C
om

nm
nications

200
S.

B
road

St.,
l0

Floor
Philadelphia,

PA
19102

Johnson
C

ontrols,
Inc.

5757
N

.
G

reen
B

ay
A

ve.
G

lendale,
W

I
53209-4408

T
icrney

&
Partners,

inc.
D

B
A

T
ierney

C
om

m
unications

200
S.

B
road

St.,
10th

Floor
Philadelphia,

PA
[9102

Provide
training

to
PL

C
B

IT
developm

entstaff
for

PC
I

com
pliance

Provide
training

to
PL

C
B

IT
developm

ent
staff

for
PC

I
com

pliance

Provide
talent

paym
ents

for
alcohol

education
spots

Provide
support

for
M

etasys
softw

are
to

ensure
that

the
N

orthw
est

O
ffice

B
uilding

is
perform

ing
at

optim
al

heating
and

cooling
Levels

and
achieving

energy
savings

Provide
strategic

m
edia

consulting
and

im
prove

digital
experience

for
the

Fine
W

ine
&

G
ood

Spirits
brand

-

201516
63014330

$
9,800.00

2015-16
63014331

$
6,300.00

2015-16
63014336

$
33,000.00

2015-16
63014339

$
12,964.00

2015-16
63014595

$
212,115.00
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W
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A
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T
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O
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T
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N
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-
P

age
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G
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E
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B
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I

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

W
I!.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(c

o
n

tin
u

e
d

)

2015-16
63014600

$
94,255.20

O
ST

,
inc.

P
rovide

assistance
to

the
security

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
team

for
security

operations
and

T
echnologies,

Inc.
vulnerability

m
anagem

ent
2101

L
S

tN
W

,
Suite

800
W

ashington,
D

C
20037-1637

2015-16
63014603

$
65,436.19

O
ST

,
Inc.

Provide
support

for
R

etail
Sales

-
D

B
A

O
ptim

al
Solutions

G
eneral

L
edger

m
odules

for
2101

C
StN

W
,

Suite
800

C
ash

M
anagem

ent
A

udit
(R

E
S

A
)

W
ashington,

D
C

20037-1637

2015-16
63014609

$
92,440.72

O
ST

,
Inc.

Senior
program

m
anager

•
D

B
A

O
ptim

al
Solutions

to
assist

w
ith

changes
to

P
L

O
’s

2101
L

StN
W

,
Suite

800
eC

om
m

erce
site

W
ashington,

D
C

20037-1637

2015-16
63014611

$
109084.29

081’,
Inc..

Senior
program

m
anager

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
to

assist
w

ith
changes

to
PL

C
B

’s
2101

L
St

N
W

,
Suite

600
eC

om
m

erce
site

W
ashington,

D
C

20037-1637

2015-16
63014615

$
83,976.48

O
ST

,
Tue.

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

to
D

B
A

O
ptim

al
Solutions

support
the

E
R

P
and

P
oint

of
2101

L
StN

W
,

Suite
800

Service
environm

ents
W

ashington,
D

C
20037-1637
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C
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T
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P
age

#
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G
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E
xecutive

B
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P
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E
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•1

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C
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S

1.
F
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C

A
L

Y
E

A
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2015-16
(continued)

O
ST

,
Inc.

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
2101

L
S

1N
W

,
Suite

800
W

ashington,
D

C
20037-1637

O
S’F, Inc.

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
2101

L
StN

W
,

Suite
$00

W
ash

in
g

to
n

,
D

C
20037-1637

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

to
support

the
E

R
P

and
Point

of
S

erv
ice

en
v

iro
n

m
en

ts

D
atab

ase
ad

m
in

istrato
r

to
su

p
p
o

rt
the

E
R

P
and

P
o

in
t

o
f

S
erv

ice
en

v
iro

n
m

en
ts

System
s

adm
inistration

staff
support

the
E

R
P,

Point
of

Service,
w

arehouse
and

other
U

nix?
L

in
u
x

serv
ers

Product
specialist

for
assistan

ce
w

ith
the

P
oint

o
f

Service
upgrade

project
and

support
post

deploym
ent

activities
a
e
r

office
hours

and
w

eekends
w

hen
stores

tire
open

T
esting

to
validate

security
vulncrabilities

previously
identified

w
ere

rem
edied

O
ST

,
Inc.

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
2101

L
StN

W
,

Suite
800

W
ashington,

D
C

20037-1637

O
ST

,
Inc.

D
B

A
O

ptim
al

Solutions
2101

L
S

tN
W

,
Suite

800
W

ashington,
D

C
20037-1637

2015-16
63014618

2015-16
63014620

2015-16
63014621

2015-16
63014674

2015-16
63014681

$
83,976.48

$
84,007.02

S
53,912.10

$
49,227.24

$
1,467.00

Synerg
IT

,
Inc.

811
C

am
p

H
om

e
R

oad
Pittsburgh,

PA
15237-1282
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o
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B
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e
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G
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N
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L
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P
E
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A

T
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N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
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T
O

T
A

L
)

P
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E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
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T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

1.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2015-16
(continued)

2015-16
63014688

$
39,396.45

081’,
Inc.

Provide
assistance

to
the

existing
D

B
A

O
ptirna[

Solutions
netw

ork
m

anagem
ent

stafffor
2101

1.StN
W

,
Suite

800
netw

ork
troubleshooting

tasks
W

ashington,
D

C
20037-1637
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E
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B

u
d

g
e
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[G
E

N
E

R
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L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

flN
G

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S

2.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2016-17

2016-17
63002655

$
1,151,864.00

SkillIN
et

Solutions,
[tic.

InstalL
ation,

conFiguration,
1151

Sonora
C

ourt,
Suite

2
and

deploym
ent

services
for

Sunnyvale,
C

A
94086

im
plem

entation
ofan

O
racle

R
etail

Point
of

Service
solution

2016-17
63003518

$
772,414.94

Pom
eroy

IT
Solutions

Sales
C

o.
installation

of
Point

of
P.

0
.

B
ox

631049
Service

hardw
are

and
softw

are
C

incinnati,
O

H
45263-1049

upgrade
to

all
stores

and
training

sites

2016-17
63009040

$
832,063.59

D
eloitte

C
onsulting

L
L

P
U

pdate
O

racle
application

stack
300

C
orporate

C
enter

D
rive

to
the

latest
available

approved
C

am
p

H
ill,

PA
17011-1760

paich
and

provide
ongoing

application
support

services

2016-17
63009401

$
73,055.00

Pennsylvania
State

U
niversity

E
nergy

and
engineering

surveys
Facilities

E
ngineering

Services
to

im
prove

energy
m

anagem
ent

U
niversity

Park,
PA

16802
for

PL
C

B
ow

ned
and

leased
sites

2016-17
63009409

.5
13,500.00

H
ealthier

R
esources

Inc.
O

perational/B
I

R
eporting

and
211

W
.

M
atthew

s
Ste

203
C

om
m

unications
L

ead
to

serve
M

atthew
s,N

C
28105-1310

as
a

Subject
M

atter
E

xpert
during

the
O

racle
U

pgrade
project

2016-17
63009668

$
439,272.48

M
om

entum
,

Inc.
D

eliver
and

m
onitor

w
eb

based
2120

M
arket

St.,
Suite

100
training

through
a

subscription
C

am
p

H
ill,

P
A

17011
based

w
eb

application
for

bars
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V
ifi.

C
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N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
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A
C

T
S

2.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2016-17
(c

o
n

tin
u

e
d

)

2016-17
63010541

$
27,810.10

A
vantce

R
SI,

L
L

C
Provide

supporl,
upgrades

for
liii

B
roadhollow

R
d.,

Suite
100

R
obocom

Inventory
M

anagem
ent

Fariningdale,
N

Y
11735-4819

softw
are,

hard-
w

are,
arid

equipm
ent

at
1L

C
B

distribution
centers

20
16-17

63011078
$

96,000.00
G

rinsfelder
Softw

are
C

om
pany

Provide
a

m
ulti-tiered

w
ine

and
D

B
A

W
ineconnect,

Inc.
spirits

data
and

inform
ation

1330
Q

uiney
St. N

E
,

Suite
301

service
that

includes
extensive

M
im

icapolis,M
N

55413-1541
inform

ation
o

n
all

PL
C

B
products

2016-17
63011124

$
913,387.68

A
C

I
W

orldw
ide

C
orp.

Softw
are

license
for

paym
ent

sw
itch

6060
C

oventry
D

rive
services

and
recurring

costs
for

Elkhorn,
N

E
68022

debit,
credit

and
gift

cards

2016-17
63011140

S
7,750.00

C
B

C
C

Support
for

C
ustom

s
softw

are
P.

0
.

B
ox

2447
enabling

C
om

ptroller
to

transm
it

B
oothw

yn,
P

A
19061-8447

PL
C

B
im

p
o
rt

p
ro

d
u

ct
sh

ip
m

en
t

data
to

H
om

eland
S

ecurity
and

FD
A

for
clearance

20
16-17

63012322
$

1,017,004.90
C

om
putronix

U
SA

,
Inc

Provide
a

scalable,
hosted

3900
5.

W
adsw

orth
B

lvd.
R

egulatory
A

ffairs
sofiw

are
system

Suite
5

10
that

is
a

single
gatew

ay
for

L
akew

ood,
C

O
80235-2208

businesses
and

individuals
to

apply
for

and
m

anage
beverage

alcohol
licenses

and
perm

its

30



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
auc

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
iid

et:
Q

N
E

IA
L

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
(A

G
E

N
C

Y
T

O
T

A
L

)
P

p.
E

32.1-E
32.8

V
ilE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

2.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2016-17
(continued)

2016-17
63012837

$
29,000.00

C
lifionL

arsonA
llen,

L
L

P
Provide

E
R

P
controls

945
E.

Park
D

rive,
Suite

202
validation

services
H

arrisburg,
PA

17
I11-2804

2016-17
63013294

$
874,786.14

D
eloitte

C
onsulting

L
L

P
M

igrate
PL

C
B

applications
300

C
orporate

C
enter

D
rive

to
new

O
A

data
centers

C
am

p
H

ill,
PA

17011-1760

2016-17
63013422

$
78,535.00

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
O

versee
holiday

advertisem
ent

D
B

A
T

ierney
C

om
m

unications
and

public
relations

cam
paign

200
S.

B
road

St.,
10”

Floor
Philadelphia,

PA
19102

20
16-17

63013564
$

52,500.00
\‘erifone,

Inc.
Provide

consulting
and

know
ledge

4060
S

olutions
C

enter
transfer

services
to

m
aintain,

L
ockbox

774060
su

p
p

o
rt

and
m

onitor
enleiplise

C
hicago,

IL
60677-4000

PTN
pads

as
putt

o
f

the
m

andated
Point

of
Service

upgrade

2016-17
63013584

$
1,239,644.75

D
eloitte

C
onsulting,

L
L

P
G

ather
detailed

requirem
ents

and
300

C
orporate

C
cnter

D
rive

provide
m

ass
upload

capabilities
C

am
p

Ff111,PA
17011-1760

for
Supply

C
hain

data

2016-17
63013700

$
36,460.34

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

D
atabase

adm
inistrator

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
design,

develop,
and

im
plem

ent
H

arrisburg,
PA

17111-2103
databases

to
supportE

R
P

and
P

oint
of

Service
environm

ents
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jflE
c
U

T
IV

E
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

:
P

auc
II

of
G

overnor’s
E

xecutive
B

udget:
L

c.N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.I-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

2.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2016-17
(continued)

2016-17
63013714

$
1,903,999.00

SkilIN
et

S
olutions,

Inc.
O

racle
E

R
P

production
support

1151
Sonora

C
ourt,

Suite
2

and
enhancem

ent
services

Sm
rnyvale,

C
A

94086
for

PL
C

B
Point

of
Sale

operations

2016-17
63013716

$
1,558,440.00

K
PM

G
,

L
L

P
O

racle
ER

P
production

support
30

N
.

T
hird

Street,
Suite

200
and

e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
arrisburg,

PA
17101

for
PL

C
B

financiaL
operations

2016-17
63013717

$
2,007,595.95

D
eloitte

C
onsuL

ting
L

L
P

O
racle

production
support

300
C

orporate
C

enter
D

rive
and

enhancem
ent

services
C

am
p

H
ill,

PA
17011-1760

for
PL

C
B

retail
operations

2016-17
63013725

$
105,230.00

C
om

puter
A

id,
Inc.

Senior
program

m
anager

470
Friendship

R
oad

to
assist w

ith
changes

to
the

PL
C

B
’s

H
alT

isburg,
PA

17111-2103
eC

onunerce
site

2016-17
63013732

$
48,301.00

Syiierg
IT,

h
c.

IT
Security

risk
assessm

ent
services

811
C

am
p

H
om

e
R

oad
Pittsburgh,

PA
15237-1282

2016-17
63013985

$
427,500.00

V
cngcr

C
onsulting,

L
L

C
Provide

O
racle

and
business

6807
Sparkling

W
ay

expertise
regarding

the
P

L
C

B
’s

W
esley

C
hapel,

FL
33545-43

83
O

racle
installation

2016-17
63014038

$
26,766.25

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
Prepare

reports
and

D
B

A
T

ierney
C

om
m

unications
conduct

research
to

m
onitor

200
S.

B
road

St.,
10111.Floor

PL
C

B
advertising

Philadelphia,
P

A
19102
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X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

II
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

Pp.
E

32.I-E
32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

2.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

2016-17
(c

o
n
tin

u
e
d
)

T
ierney

&
Partners,

Inc.
D

B
A

T
iem

ey
C

om
m

unications
2008.

B
road

St.,
10th

F
loor

Philacleiphia,
PA

19102

U
ser

acceptance
and

regression
testing

and
certification

of
o

Point
of

Sale
equipm

ent

B
lanket

Purchase
O

rder
for

project
research

plm
m

m
g

and
developm

ent
for

all
T

V
,

radio
arid

p
rat

m
arketing,

social
m

edia,
em

ail,
w

eb,
B

2B
and

adm
in

9/28/16
through

4/30/17

2016-17
63014179

$
5,000.00

2016-17
63015454

$
1,132,564.00

First
D

ata
M

erchant
Svcs.

5775
D

tc
B

lvd.,
Suite

100
G

reenw
ood

V
illage,

C
O

80111

33



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

4
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

V
III.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
IN

G
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

3.
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
17-18

2017-18
63009668

$
109,818.12

M
o
m

en
tu

m
,

Inc.
D

eliver
and

m
onitor

w
eb

based
2120

M
arket

St.,
Suite

100
training

through
a

subscription
C

am
p

H
ill,PA

17011
based

w
eb

application
for

bars,
clubs,

and
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

.

2017-18
63011078

$
8,000.00

G
rinsfelder

Softw
are

C
om

pany
Provide

a
m

ulti-tiered
w

ine
and

D
B

A
W

inecom
iect,

Inc
spirits

data
and

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n

1330
Q

u
ncy

St.N
E

,
Suite

301
services

on
aLl

PL
C

B
products

M
inneapolis,

M
N

55413-1541

2017-18
63013564

$
52,500.00

V
erfone,

Inc.
Provide

consulting
and

know
ledge

4060
Solutions

C
enter

transfer
services

to
m

aintain,
L

ockbox
774060

support
and

m
onitor

enterprise
C

hicago,
IL

60677-4000
PIN

pads
as

part
o
f

the
m

andated
Point

of
Service

upgrade

2017-18
63013985

$
368,000.00

V
enger

C
onsulting,

L
L

C
Provide

O
racle

and
business

6807
Sparkling

W
ay

expertise
regarding

the
P

L
C

B
’s

W
esley

C
hapel,

FL
33545-4383

O
racle

installation

34



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

(A
G

E
N

C
Y

T
O

T
A

L
)

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

4.
IN

T
E

R
A

G
E

N
C

Y
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

S

a.
O

ffice
o
f

A
dm

inistration
—

A
greem

ent
betw

een
O

A
and

PL
C

B
to

allow
PL

C
B

to
purchase

O
racle

E
nterprise

Softw
are

w
ith

the
PL

C
B

agreeing
not

to
use

certain
softw

are
that

the
O

A
T

echnoL
ogy

A
rchitecture

R
eview

B
oard

deem
ed

in
conflict

w
ith

the
C

om
m

onw
ealth’s

enterprise
standards.

N
o

cost
to

either
party.

E
ffective

date
of

9/05/08
w

ith
indefinite

term
.

b.
D

epartm
ent

of
G

eneral
Services

—
A

greem
ent

for
the

PL
C

B
to

participate
in

consolidated
w

arehousing
and

w
arehouse

fim
etions

provided
by

D
O

S.
A

s
a

cost
savings

m
ove

by
the

PL
C

B
,

all
PL

C
B

m
aterials

w
ere

rem
oved

fittn
D

G
S

w
arehousing

locations
ott

O
ctober

2015
and

are
being

handled
internal

by
the

PL
C

B
. T

he
Interagency

A
greem

ent
M

em
orandum

o
f

U
nderstanding

for
w

arehousing
rem

ains
in

effect
at

no
cost

to
PL

C
B

in
the

event
the

PL
C

B
has

a
future

need
to

use
D

O
S

w
arehousing.

C
ost

to
PL

C
B

w
as

$34,053
for

FY
15-16

prior
to

the
rem

oval
o
f

PL
C

B
m

aterials
from

D
O

S
w

arehousing.
(C

ost
to

PL
C

B
for

M
l

FY
14-15

w
as

$202,075.)

c.
D

epartm
ent

of
G

eneral
Services

—
A

greem
ent

for
the

PL
C

B
to

reim
burse

D
O

S
for

vehicle
purchases.

N
o

cost
to

either
party

other
than

the
cost

of vehicles
purchased

by
D

O
S

and
PL

C
B

’s
reim

bursem
ent

for
that

cost
to

D
G

S.
E

ffective
date

o
f

8/29/2012
w

ith
indefinite

term
.

U.
D

epartm
ent

o
f

G
eneral

Services
-

A
greem

ent
to

transfer
certain

PL
C

B
real

estate
responsibilities

and
staff

to
D

O
S

:
E

ffective
10/13/13

w
ith

indefinite
term

.
FY

13-14
costs

forP
L

C
B

w
ere

$443,687.19,
w

hile
FY

14-15
charges

w
ere

$681,566.36.

e.
D

epartm
ent

of
G

eneral
Services

—
A

greem
ent

betw
een

the
PL

C
B

and
D

O
S

for
the

PL
C

B
to

pay
a

m
onthly

proportional
share

çf
the

paym
ent

obligation
to

D
O

S’s
contractor

for
installation

and
financing

costs
associated

w
ith

energy
conservation

m
easures

installed
in

the
N

W
O

B
under

D
O

S’
contract

to
im

plem
ent

P
ennsylvania’s

G
uaranteed

E
nergy

Savings
A

ct
(G

E
SA

).
E

ffective
10/9/10

and
concurrent

w
ith

the
term

o
f

the
G

uaranteed
E

nergy
S

avings
A

greem
ent.
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X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
:

P
age

#
of

G
overnor’s

E
xecutive

B
udget:

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

O
F

P
R

O
F

IT
S

T
O

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1.
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
D

A
T

A
(A

m
ounts

in
T

housands)

T
otal

F
unds

—
T

ran
sfer

of
P

rofits
to

the
G

eneral
F

in
id

2015-16
2016-17

2017-18

S
tateF

unds
$

0
$

0
$

0
Federal

F
unds

0
0

0
O

ther
F

unds
(State

Stores)
100,000

216,400
T

otal
$100,000

$216,400
$185,100

2.
P

ro
g
ram

D
escription

T
ius

E
xecutive

A
uthorization

provides
the

m
eans

by
w

hich
profits

from
the

operation
of

the
Slate

L
iquor

Stores
are

transferred
from

the
State

Stores
Fund

to
the

G
eneral

Funti.
T

he
transfcrs

are
used

for
general

appropnatton
purposes

as
provided

by
A

ct
N

o.
412-1/2

of
July

18,
1935,

P.L
.

1316.
(P

urdon’sT
itle47

P.S.§
744-907b).

3.
O

th
er

In
fo

rm
atio

n

H
istorical

L
apses

2013-14
2014-15

2015-16
$

0
$

0
$

0
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rE
X

E
cU

T
IV

E
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

:
P

age
4

of
G

overnor’s
E

xecutive
B

udget:
P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
O

F
L

IQ
U

O
R

P
p.

E
32.1-E

32.8

1.
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
D

A
T

A
(A

m
ounts

in
T

h
o
u
sa

n
d
s)

T
otal

F
unds

—
P

urchases
of

L
iquor

2015-16
2016-17

2017-18

S
taleF

unds
$

0
$

0
$

0
Federal

Funds
0

0
0

O
ther

Funds
(S

tate
Stores)

1,332,250
1.386,000

1.425,000
T

otal
$1,332,250

$1,386,000
$1,425,000

2.
P

ro
g
ram

D
escription

T
his

E
xecutive

A
uthorization

is
used

only
to

purchase
m

erchandise
for

resale
in

the
W

ine
and

Spirits
stores.

3.
O

th
er

In
fo

rm
atio

n

H
istorical

L
apses

.
(A

m
ounts

in
T

housands)

F
iscal

Y
ear

A
uthorization

L
apse

-

2015-16
$1,332,250

$
577

2014-15
$1,311,000

$
660

2013-14
$1,243,000

$
5,011
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E
X

E
C

U
T

iV
E

A
U

T
IIO

R
IZ

A
’fIO

N
:

P
aue

II
of

G
o

v
ern

o
rs

E
xecutive

B
udget:

P
L

C
B

C
O

M
P

T
R

O
L

L
E

R
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

P
p.

E
32.L

-E
32.8

L
IQ

U
O

R
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

B
O

A
R

D
C

O
M

P
T

R
O

L
L

E
R

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S

T
he

E
xecutive

A
uthorization

for
the

C
om

ptroller
o
f

the
L

iquor
C

ontrol
B

oard
is

included
in

the
hearing

m
aterials

prepared
by

the
G

overnor’s
O

ffice
o
fthe

B
udget.

T
he

L
iquor

C
ontrol

B
oard

has
neither

authority
nor

responsibility
for

the
expenses

in
cu

lT
ed

by
the

O
ffice

of
the

C
om

ptroller.38



S
tate

S
to

res
F

und
S

tatem
en

t
of

C
ash

R
eceip

ts
&

D
isb

u
rsem

en
ts

W
o
rk

sh
eet

(D
ollar

A
m

o
u
n
ts

in
T

h
o
u
san

d
s)

A
CILIO

I
A

V
A

ILA
B

LE
B

U
D

G
E

T
E

stim
ate

E
stim

ate
E

stim
ate

E
stim

ate
F’?
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BACKGROUND

Introduction

The Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (PLCB) is an entity of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) authorized by law to regulate the sale and distribution of
alcoholic beverages in the Commonwealth. Included within this mandate is the authority to
establish, operate and maintain Pennsylvania Fine Wine & Good Spirits stores for the sale of
liquor, including wine and spirits.

The PLCB serves as the Commonwealth’s responsible seller of wine and spirits, regulates
Pennsylvania’s beverage alcohol industry’ and promotes social responsibility and alcohol
education, while maximizing financial returns for the benefit of all Pennsylvanians.

Histon’ and Agency Overview

With the end of Prohibition in 1933, various laws regarding alcohol regulation were passed by
the Pennsylvania General Assembly, including the Liquor Control Act and the Beverage License
Law. These laws created the PLCB. The statutory authority for PLCB is Act 21 of April 12,
1951, P.L. 90; as reenacted by Act 14 of June 29, 1987, P.L. 32. In confonTlance with the
Pennsylvania Liquor Code, the PLCB regulates the manufacture, possession, sale, consumption,
importation, use, storage, transportation. and delivery of wine, liquor, alcohol, and malt or
brewed beverages in the Commonwealth.

Through fiscal year 20 15—16 all package sales of wines and spirits in Pennsylvania, with the
exception of those sold by licensed limited wineries and distilleries, were made through Fine
Wine & Good Spirits stores operated by the PLCB. These included both retail sales to individual
consumers and wholesale sales to licensed establishments where wines and spirits are sold by the
drink. While malt and brewed beverages are not sold through the system, the PLCB does regulate
those sales through the licensing of distributors, restaurants, hotels, supermarkets, and clubs that
sell those beverages.

Additionally, the PLCB. in conjunction with the state Gaining Control Board, reviews
applications and conducts background investigations of PLCB licensees wishing to obtain tavern
gaming licenses.

On June 8, 2016, Governor Wolf signed Act 39 into law. Act 39 liquor reforms changed more
than 35 sections of the Liquor Code and added a number of new sections — the most sweeping
changes to liquor laws in Pennsylvania since the end of Prohibition in 1933. The law, which took
effect on Aug. 8,2016, will impact PLCB operations in the next fiscal year and beyond.
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BACKGROUND (Continued)

The PLCB. an independent administrative board, is comprised of three members who are
appointed to staggered four-year terms by the Governor with the concurrence of two-thirds of the
Senate. The Board is responsible for the management of the PLCB in the areas of directing the
state-operated Fine Wine & Good Spirits stores and authorizing the licensing of establishments
that manufacture or sell alcohol. The PLCB also provides a comprehensive program of alcohol
education aimed at promoting responsible consumption and avoidance of abuse among legal
consumers, and prevention of purchase and consumption by minors. The PLCB funds the
operations of the Pennsylvania State Police Bureau of Liquor Control Enforcement, which is
responsible for enforcing the liquor laws and regulations throughout the Commonwealth.

The PLCB is primarily responsible for the accounting and reporting of the Liquor License Fund
and the State Stores Fund. The Liquor License Fund is an agency fund that serves as a pass-
through account for fees for hotel, restaurant, and club liquor and/or beer licenses. These fees are
returned semi-annually to the municipalities in which the licenses are located, while interest
earned on fund deposits is credited to the General Fund.

The State Stores Fund is an enterprise fund that serves as the general operating fund for the
PLCB. This ftind receives revenues from the sale of goods, primarily through Fine Wine & Good
Spirits stores, and various non-operating revenues including fees not credited to the Liquor
License Fund. The State Stores Fund also covers the costs and expenses associated with the
operation and administration of all PLCB functions as outlined and prescribed by the
Pennsylvania Liquor Code and pays for services provided by other departments such as the
Department of the Auditor General for auditing services and the Office of Comptroller
Operations for personnel assigned to supporting the PLCB. In addition, the fund provides monies
to the Pennsylvania State Police for enforcement of the Liquor Code, as noted above, and the
Department of Drug & Alcohol Programs for alcohol abuse programs, and makes annual profit
transfers to the General Fund.

The 18 percent liquor tax and 6 percent state sales tax collected by the PLCB are routinely
transferred to the General Fund. Local sales taxes collected are remitted to Philadelphia and
Allegheny County, as appropriate.

The PLCB operates over 600 Pennsylvania wine and spirits stores with gross annual sales in
excess of $2.43 billion for fiscal year 2015-2016, an increase of 4.1 percent over the previous
fiscal year. As a result, the PLCB’s return to the Pennsylvania General Fund and state Treasury
also grew, including $348.0 million in liquor tax, $135.6 million in state sales tax and $100
million operational profits transferred to the General Fund. Additionally, the PLCB provided
$26.1 million to fund Pennsylvania State Police liquor control enforcement efforts, afforded $3.3

.7
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BACKGROUND (Continued)

million to support the Pennsylvania Department of Drug & Alcohol Programs and returned $4.6
million to local municipalities. Beginning in 2013. the Alcohol Education grants for reducing
underage and dangerous drinking ‘vent to a two-year cycle. The amount awarded by the PLCB
for first year grant funding in the two year grant cycle ending June 30, 2017 was Sl.lmillion.

Key Facts

• All tax moneys collected are transferred to the State Treasury. All revenues remaining,
after payment of PLCB operating expenses and after required appropriations are made to
other entities and Commonwealth agencies, are made available to be transferred to the
State Treasury.

• The PLCB is the largest purchaser of wine and spirits in the United States, and passes
significant volume purchase discounts on to customers.

• The PLCB operates over 600 stores, which are leased from private landlords.
• 100% of the required State and Local Sales Taxes are collected by the PLCB and reported

to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.
• The state liquor tax of 18% is included in the shelf price of each item.
• The PLCB outsources warehousing services for 3 distribution centers in Pennsylvania.
• In fiscal year 2015-2016, PLCB processed slightly more than 71,000 license and permit

applications.
• The PLCB has an established formal Bureau of Alcohol Education, which provides

educational material to youth, legal consumers and beverage alcohol servers.
• The PLCB funds grants to colleges and universities, communities that host these

institutions, municipalities, and their organizations such as law enforcement departmenls
and non-profit organizations to develop and/or maintain environmental management
prevention strategies and other proven prevention strategies to reduce dangerous and
underage drinking.
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control
Board (PLCB) - State Stores Fund, which comprise of the Statements of Net Position as of
June 30. 2016 and 2015, and the related Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position and Statements of Cash Flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements; and the PLCB - Liquor License Fund, which comprise of the Statements of
Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related Statements of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Aianagei;zent ‘s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements and financial highlights are free olmaterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the elièctiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

As discussed in Note A, the financial statements present only the PLCB and do not purport to,
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of
June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the PLCB-State Stores Fund and Liquor License Fund as of June 30,
2016 and 2015, and the results of the State Stores Fund’s operations and its cash flows for the
fiscal year then ended, and the Liquor License Fund’s changes in assets and liabilities for the
fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supptemenran’ Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 7 through 10. schedule of PLCB contributions
and schedule of PLCB’s proportionate share of net pension liability on pages 36-37 be presented
to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not proide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

The Background has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements, and accordingly. we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditbig Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 6. 2016, on our consideration of PLCB’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standard.s in
considering PLCB’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 6. 2016 Eugene . DePasquale
Auditor General
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PLCB Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

PLCB management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the
Agency’s financial statements. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and, as such,
include amounts based on estimates and judgments by management. The PLCB maintains a
system of internal controls which is designed to provide reasonable assurance that its financial
statements are Free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Discussion of Basic Financial Statements

The accounts of the State Stores Fund and the Liquor License Fund are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting and on a fiscal year basis, comprised of 12 calendar months.

The basic financial statements included in this audit report are the State Stores Fund Comparative
Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015; State Stores Fund Comparative
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015; State Stores Fund Comparative Statement of Cash Flows For the fiscal
‘ears ended June 30, 2016 and 2015; the Liquor License Fund Statement of Fiduciary’ Net
Position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015; and the Liquor License Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and
June 30. 2015.

The State Stores Fund Comparative Statement of Net Position provides information about assets
and liabilities and reflects the net financial position of the State Stores Fund at the end of each
fiscal year. The Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Position reports the operating revenue activity, expenses related to such activity and operating
transfers out for each fiscal year. The Comparative Statement of Cash Flows outlines the cash
inflows and outflows relating to the operations for each fiscal year. The Liquor License Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position provides information about assets and liabilities that reflect
the position of the Liquor License Fund for each fiscal year end. The Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position illustrates the net asset and net liability activity throughout the fiscal year.
The basic financial statements also include Notes to Financial Statements that provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the statements. These
statements provide current and long-term information about the PLCB’s financial position.

Although the liquor tax is incorporated into the retail price of products and is discussed herein as
part of the sales analysis and transfers out, neither it nor the slate and local sales taxes are
reflected in the basic financial statements as revenue, expenses or liabilities.
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PLCB Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Executive Summary & Highlights

Fiscal year 2015-16 sales grew 4.1 percent over the prior year as a result of volume increases plus
a minor increase in average retail price per unit. PLCB fiscal year 2015-16 net income of $103.9
million was $20.3 million, or 24.2 percent. greater than last year reflecting higher sales, a slight
improvement in gross margin, relatively flat operating expenses and a decrease in combined non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Other financial highlights include:

• Higher operating income of SI 31.8 million, representing a year-over-year increase of $20.3
million or 18.2 percent.

• Net cash flow from operating activities of $171.8 million, up $32.7 million from the prior
year, was more than sufficient to cover a $100 million profit transfer to the General Fund, the
costs of the Pennsylvania State Police’s liquor control enforcement, transfers to the
Department of Drug & Alcohol Programs and the PLCB’s capital expenditures programs.

• Year-end cash and investments increased $33.4 million to $295.4 million, due to positive net
cash flow from operations.

• Total liabilities increased by $105.5 million to $906.5 million, reflecting primarily the
continuing increase in the PLCB’s share of the Commonwealth’s net pension liability and
other post-employment benefits.

• The PLCB’s total net position improved slightly, but was still in a net deficit position of
$238.2 million as of June 30. 2016.

Revenues and Costs

Sales

Sales and tax revenue in fiscal year 2015-16 totaled $2.43 billion, an increase of $94.8 million or
4.1 percent over fiscal year 2014-IS. Excluding liquor and sales taxes, net sales of $1.94 billion
were up $75.6 million, also 4.1 percent over the prior year. Unit volume growth accounted for the
majority of the sales increase, while price per unit increased by less than 1 percent. By product
category, sales growth was relatively balanced, with spirits and wine increasing by 4.2 percent
and 3.8 percent, respectively.
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PLCB Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Within the PLCB’s customer base, retail sales to individual consumers grew 4.2 percent. while
sales to licensees increased by 3.2 percent. Retail sales made up nearly 80 percent of total sales.
On a volume basis, spirit unit sales grew 3.5 percent. and wine unit sales grew 3.0 percent, while
spirit gallon sales increased 2.5 percent and wine gallon sales increased 1.8 percent. DebiUcredit
card purchases represented approximately 65 percent of sales during fiscal year 2015-16, up from
62 percent last year. The average sale per debit and credit card transaction was S30.65 and
$53.57. respectively, versus $30.41 and $53.81 during the prior year.

Gross Margin

Gross margin increased to 31.3 percent in fiscal year 2015-16 from 31.2 percent last year. The
increase is due in part to increases in vendor promotion allowances, which were up SI I million
or 8.6 percent, and PLCB forward-buying in advance of vendor price increases.

Operating Income & Expense

Operating income for the year ended June 30, 2016. was S131.8 million, up $20.3 million, or
18.2 percent. from the $111.5 million reported last year. The increase was almost entirely a
function of higher sales, as operating expenses were up only $4.2 million.

Within operating expenses. salary’ and wages for fiscal year 2015-16 were essentially flat
compared to the prior year, while workers’ compensation expense decreased $22.3 million.
significantly offsetting the effects ofa $17 million increase in total pension expense. Non-payroll
related expenses grew by $3.7 million, or 2.5 percent compared to the prior year, mostly due to
increases in store rent, which was up 5.1 percent. and credit and debit card service lees, which
increased 6.2 percent.

Transfers Out

The Bureau of Liquor Control Enforcement within the Pennsylvania State Police received $26.1
million in funding in fiscal year 2015-16, an increase of $0.4 million, or 1.4 percent, over the
previous year. Contributions to the Department of Drug & Alcohol Programs increased to $3.3
million, reflecting a legislatively mandated retroactive increase to $2.5 million for fiscal year
2014-15 and a similar amount for fiscal year 2015-16.

Also as legislatively mandated, the PLCB transferred $100 million in profits to the General Fund
during fiscal year 2015-16, a $20 million increase over the $80 million profit transfer in the prior
year.
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PLCB Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other contributions to the General Fund during fiscal year 2015-16 generated by the PLCB’s
operations, but not reflected as revenues, expenses, or cash flows in the State Stores Funds
financial statements, included $135.6 million in state sales tax and $348 million in liquor tax,
both up 4.1 percent over the prior year. Additionally. the PLCB remitted $8.7 million in local
sales taxes to Philadelphia and Allegheny County.

Licensing fees returned to local municipalities from the Liquor License Fund were $4.6 million
for fiscal year 2015-16, compared to $4.5 million in the prior year.

I0



PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PEN!%S LVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS June 30,2016 .Iune 30, 2015

Current assets
Cash $ 19,963 S 20,210
Temporary investments 275,395 241,702
Accounts and claims receivable, net 1,481 1,305
Due from other funds 87 28
Merchandise inventories, net 244,159 230,093
Operating supplies 492 202
Prepaid ewenses 3.766

Total current assets S 541.577 S 497,306

\oncurrent assets
Non-depreciable capital assets

Land S 323 $ 323
Depreciable capital assets

Building 19,558 19,558
Leasehold umproements 758 758
Machinery and equipment 51,585 46,576
Intangibles 20,559 27,541

Less accumulated depreciation (53.565) (57.728)
Net depreciable capital assets $ 38,895 $ 36.705

Total noncurrent capital assets $ 39.218 $ 37.028

Total assets $ 580.795 $ 534.334

Total deferred outflows of resources — Note C $ 93.191 S 31,039

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable S 256,513 S 253,125
Miscellaneous accounts payable 13,003 12,339
Accrued expenses 20,322 16,695
Self-insurance — Nole L 7,772 7,817
Due to other funds — Note E 8,688 7,690
Due to fiduciary funds 1,602 1,378
Due to other governments 481 495

Total current liabilities $ 308.381 $ 299,539

Noncurrent liabilities
OPEB—NoteC 90,178 76,653
Self-Insurance — Note L 39,287 42.109
Net pension liability — Note C 449,175 362,685
Compensated absences 19.507 20092

Total noncurrent liabilities S 598,147 $ 501.539

Total liabilities 5 906 528 $ 801.078
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

.June3O.2016 .June3O,2015

Total deferred inflows of resources — Note C $ 5,636 $ 3,002

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets $ 39,218 $ 37,028
Restricted for:

State Stores Fund (deficit) (277,396) (275,735)

Total net position $Q38.707)

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
June 30. 2016 .Iune 30, 2015

Sales net of taxes SI ,937,885 SI 862,270

Less: Cost of goods sold 1,332.286 1.281.140

Gross profit from sales 5 605.599 S 581.130

Less: Operating expenses:
Purchasing, storage and transportation 20,786 18,433
Stores’ operations and supervision 368,992 365,466
Central administrative support 68,518 69,683
Comptroller operations 5,817 4,714
Commonwealth-provided services 9,715 11.291

Total 5 473.828 $ 469.587

Operating profit from state stores S 131.771 111.543

Other operating revenues (expenses):
Enforcement fines 1,892 1,976
License fees 12,884 12,315
Miscellaneous income 3,611 3,695
Admtnistrative Iawjudge (2,491) (2,543)
Legal (3,359) (3,570
Licensing and investigations (15,110) (14,498

Total S (2,573) $ (2.625)

Total operating income 5 129,198 108.9 I 8

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income/loss 893 429
Other (143) (23)

Total S 750 $ 406

Income before operating transfers 129.948 109.324

Operating transfers out:
PSP enforcement — Note I 26.091 25,726

Income after enforcemenubefore other transfers S 103.857 S 83,598

Other operating transfers:
Transfers out:
General Fund—Note G (100,000) (80.000)
Drug and alcohol programs — Note H (3.328) (1.672)

Total 5(103328) S (81.672)

Change in net position 529 $ .926

Net position — becinning S (238,707) S (240,633)
Restated - Note NI

Total net position — ending S42i8.JJS

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal \‘ear Ended
June 30, 2016 June 30.2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Rcccipts from customers S 1,956.037 S 1,879,999
Paymenis to suppliers (1.784,218) (1.740.843)

Set cash provided by (used for) operating activities S 171,819 S 139.156

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers out (127.763) 1)07.398)

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities $ (127,763) S (107,398)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (11.503) (11.503)

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities $ (11,503) $ (11,503)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments (1,613,172) (1,415,178)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 1,579,479 1,383,742
Investment income 893 429

Net cash used in investing activities $ (32.800) $ (31.007)

Net decrease in cash $ (247) $ (10,752)

Cash — beginning of year 20.210 30.962

Cash — end of year

__________

Reconciliation of nperating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:

Operating income S 129,198 S 108,918
Depreciation 9,1 70 9,5 10

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (176) (486)
Inventory (14,356) (23,508)
Due from other funds (59) 229
Other operating net assets 3.766 (467)
Deferred outflows — pension related (62,153) (17,864)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,679 (5.075)
Due to other funds (658) (2.742)
Due to pension trust funds 224 (399)
Net pension liability 86,491 31,708
Due to other uovernment (14) (270)
Deferred inflows — pension related 2.634 3.002
Other post-employment benefit obligations 13,525 13.023
Self-insurance liabilities (2,867) 23,957
Compensated absences (585) (360)

Total adjustments S 42,621 $ 30.238

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $11L&L2

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash with Treasury
Cash in transit
Investments — short term

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
License fees due to municipalities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

June 30,2016

S
92

2.327

S 2.419

S 2.417

S 2.419

June 30. 2015

S 5
80

2.275

5 2.360

S 2,358
,

S 2.360

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral pafl of this statement. -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION — Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Balance Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions Deductions .Iune 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash —Note K S 85 S 9.009 S 9,002 S 92
Temporaiy investments — Note K 2.275 1,484 4.432 2.327

Total assets S23ffi $_L3493 $2A19

LIABILITIES

Due to municipalities $ 2,358 $ 4,576 $ 4,517 $ 2,417
Other liabilities 2 2

Total liabilities $95I9

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of tins statement -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS)

Balance Balance
.Iunc 30. 2014 Additions Deductions June 30. 2015

ASSETS

Cash — Note K $ 62 S 9,092 $ 9.069 S 85
Temporary investments — Note K 2.351 1.476 4.552 2.275

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to municipalities — Note K S 2,411 S 4,561 S 4,6)4 S 2,358
Other liabilities 2 2 2

Total liabilities $4i $A.5

________

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral pafl of this statement. -
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

LIQUOR LICENSE FUND-JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements present only the financial position and results of the PLCB and do

not present the financial position of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The significant

accounting policies employed by PLCB in the preparation of the accompanying financial

statements are as follows:

Fund Accounting: The PLCB is primarily responsible for the accounting and reporting of the

State Stores Fund and the Liquor License Fund. The State Stores Fund is an enterprise fund

primarily used to account for wine and spirit sales and related operating expenses. The Liquor

License Fund is an agency fund used for the collection and subsequent disbursement of certain

annual license fees, which are returned to municipalities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires the PLCB to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount

of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Basis of Accounting: The State Stores Fund is reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, all assets,

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with the

operations of this fund are included in the Statement of Net Position. Under the accrual basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized in the

fiscal year incurred.

The Liquor License Fund, a fiduciary type fund, uses the accrual basis of accounting to report

assets and liabilities. This fund has no measurement focus and does not report operating activity.

(‘as!,: Cash includes PLCB funds held by the State Treasurer, imprest balances held at financial

institutions and change used at state stores.

Twnporury Investments: The PLCB participates in the Treasury Department’s Commonwealth

Investment Program (CIP) with other Commonwealth agencies. Practically all individual funds

which are part of the Commonwealth are participants in the CIP. The Treasury Department

accounts for each participating fund’s equity (considered “shares”) in the CIP on a daily basis.

“Share” balances of participating funds fluctuate considerably during the fiscal year, based on the

timing of cash receipts and disbursements in the participating fund, and are reported as temporary

investments. The CIP is considered an internal investment pool. Temporary investments are

reported at fair value,

18
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

LIQUOR LICENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Cash Equivalents: No investments which could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated

as such on the Statement of Cash Flows: therefore, only net changes in cash are displayed.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at weighted average cost, hi January 2012, the PLCB

implemented a bailment inventor management program. PLCB began entering into bailment

agreements with certain suppliers that require the suppliers to continue to hold title to stock at

PLCB warehouse facilities until it is withdrawn from bailment for shipment to PLCB stores. The

bailment inventory management program significantly reduced on hand inventory valuation.

Product warehousing and handling, as well as transportation to store costs, are reported as pail of

merchandise inventories and are charged to cost of goods sold as product is sold.

The allowance For obsolete inventory was $233 thousand at June 30, 2016 and $151 thousand at

June 30, 2015. Management will regularly review, at least once annually, inventory quantities on

hand and increase/decrease the provision for obsolete inventory as necessary based upon factors

that include historical unsalable product write-off, the age of the inventory and forecasts of

product demand.

Capital Assets and Depreciation: Capital assets are reported at cost in the Statement of Net

Position. The cost of land is reported; for other types of capital assets, the following minimum

per item dollar reporting thresholds are used:

Building $5,000

Leasehold improvements $5,000
Machinery and equipment $5,000
Intangible assets $5,000

Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated over the useful lives using the straight-line

method. The following useful lives are being used:

Building 10-20 years

Leasehold improvements 3-l5 years

Machinery and equipment 5-10 years

Intangible assets 5-10 years

19



PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxes: An 18 percent state liquor excise tax and a 6 percent state sales tax are collected and
remitted monthly to the Departi-nent of Revenue for the General Fund. The PLCB also collects
and remits a I percent local sales tax for Allegheny County and a 2 percent local sales tax for
Philadelphia County. Taxes collected forthe years ended June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Eiided
June 30. 2016 June 30, 2015

Liquor Tax S348,056 5334,414
State Sales Tax 135.581 130.193
Local Sales Tax 8.688 8.493
Total $492325 SA7kIOO

Compensated Absences: Employees accumulate annual leave depending on length of credited
service from between 2.7 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid. Generally a maximum of
45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year. Employees are paid for
accumulated annual leave upon termination or retirement.

Employees earn sick leave based on an agreed upon percentage of regular hours paid. Generally.
a maximum of 300 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year. Most retiring
employees that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid in accordance with the
following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid

0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150

Over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 II
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The accumulated annual and sick leave and related payroll benefits payable reported for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 (amounts in thousands) was $24,384 ($4,877 current
and $19,507 non-current) and $25,115 ($5,023 current and $20,092 non-current), respectively. It
is the PLCB’s policy to record the cost of annual and sick leave in accordance with GASB
Statement 16. The expense and corresponding liability are reflected in the financial statements.

The following summary provides aggregated information reported for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 of the compensated absences liabilities to include the additions and
reductions during the fiscal years then ended (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Liability — Liability —

End Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

June3O,2016 $25,115 $16,533 $17,264 $24,384
June 30, 2015 $24,641 $17,299 $16,825 $25,115

Pension Costs and Liability: In the State Stores Fund Statement of Net Position, pension
liabilities are reported at their actuarial present value of projected benefit payments to periods of
employee service. The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund employer contributions to the State
Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) as required by their Boards, through statutory authority,
or as required based on other applicable statutory requirements. Since SERS is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer pension plan, and the PLCB participates in SERS, the PLCB reports a net
pension liability as required by GASB 68.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Pension Plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from their fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

New Accounting Pronouncements: The PLCB adopted GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value
Measurement and Application” and GASB Statement No. 76, “The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments”. The adoption of these
statements had no effect on the previously reported amounts.
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND — JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Treasun’ Department has the authority to manage. invest, and reinvest the moneys of all
funds which are not legally authorized to be invested by a board. commission or State officer.
The Treasury Department manages and invests moneys of the Commonwealth through the
Commonwealth Investment Program (CIP). The PLCB participates in the CIP’s Pool 999
investment pool. Pool 999 is designed to provide a high degree of liquidity and safety. Pool 999
is organized similarly to a money market fund, with an expectation ofa stable net asset value per
share. Treasury accounts for each participating hind’s equity. or shares, in the pool on a daily
basis. Share balances of participating hinds vary considerably during the fiscal year. based on the
timing of cash receipts and disbursements. PLCB has reported the fair value of its shares as of
June 30. 2016 and 2015, the fund’s year-end. Shares in Pool 999 are reported as temporary
investments.

The CIP pools are considered internal investment pools of the Commonwealth of PA and are
subject to the requirements of GASB Statement No. 40. GASB Statement No. 40 requires state
and local governments to make certain disclosures relating to investment risk, consisting of credit
risk (including custodial credit risk and concentrations of credit risk), interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk, in addition to custodial credit risk and foreign currency risk on deposits.
The Treasury Department has formally adopted written investment policies to address these
investment risks and has disclosed those risks associated with its total pooled deposits and
investments in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s June 30, 2016 Basic Financial Statements.

PLCB’s total deposit balance (amounts in thousands) of $20,055 and $20,295 at June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively, was not exposed to either custodial credit risk or foreign currency risk.

As a participant in Treasury’s CIP Pool 999, PLCB’s investments are exposed to credit risk and
interest rate risk mentioned above. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The credit risk of fixed income instruments susceptible
to credit quality rating is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies (or
NRSRAs) such as Moody’s Investors Sen’ice. Treasury’s CIP investment pools are not rated by
an NRSRA. Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment’s value will change, advantageously or
adversely, due to a change in the absolute value of interest rates. The Treasury Department
measures interest rate risk using option adjusted duration. Duration is a measure of an
investment’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates. The higher the duration, the greater the
changes in fair value when interest rates change. The average option adjusted duration of
Treasury’s CIP Pool 999 at June 30, 2016 is approximately 0.083 years.
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description: To provide pension benefits for employees of state government and certain
other organizations, the SERS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
retirement plan. The plan, covering substantially all Commonwealth employees, is a contributory
defined benefit pension plan as established by Commonwealth laws. Membership in SERS is
mandatory for most PLCB (and other state) employees. Article II of the Commonwealth’s
constitution assigns the authority to establish and amend the benefit provision of the plan to the
General Assembly.

SERS issues stand-alone, audited financial statements which are publicly available at
www.sers.pa.gov. Written requests for financial statements should be directed to the following
address:

State Employees’ Retirement System
30 North Third Street, Suite 150
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1716

Benefits Provided: Under the plan, for most employees hired prior to January I, 2011,
retirement benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Generally, employees who retire at age
60 or, if under age 60, with 35 years of service are entitled to a normal (unreduced) annual
retirement benefit. The general annual benefit is 2 percent of a Class A member’s highest three-
year average salary multiplied by years of service. This annual benefit is 2.5 percent for Class
AA members.

Act 2010-120 (Act 120), which preserved all benefits in place for then current members,
mandated a number of benefit reductions for new members effective January I, 2011. The
benefit reduction included a new class of membership that accrues benefits at 2 percent of their
final average salary instead of the previous 2.5 percent. The new vesting period changed from
five to ten years of credited service, and the option to withdraw lump sum accumulated employee
contributions was eliminated. The new normal retirement age is 65 for most employees. Act
120 created a new A-3 class of service and an optional A-4 class for most employees that entered
SERS membership for the first time on or after January 1,2011. The general annual benefit for
Class A-3 members is 2 percent of the member’s highest three-year average salary times years of
service while the Class A-4 benefit accrual rate is 2.5 percent.
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LICENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

Contributions: Section 5507 of the State Employees Retirement Code (SERC) (71 Pa. C.S.
§5507) requires the Commonwealth and other employers whose employees are SERS members
to make contributions to the fund on behalf of all active members and annuitants necessary to
fund the liabilities and provide the annuity reserves required to pay benefits. SERS funding
policy, as set by the SERS board, provides for periodic active member contributions at statutory
rates. The SERS funding policy also provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates based on SERS funding valuation, expressed as a percentage of annual
retirement covered payroll, such that they. along with employee contributions and an actuarially
detemined rate of investment return, are adequate to accumulate assets to pay benefits when due.
1-lowever, Act 2010-120 imposes rate increase collars (limits on annual rate increases) on
employer contributions. The collar for Commonwealth fiscal year 20 14-2015 was 4.5% and will
remain at that rate until no longer needed. The PLCB’s contributions to the SERS were (amounts
in thousands) $37,688 and $30,881 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred,
revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable,
and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the related trade date. Member and
employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employee salaries are reported.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plan.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, aizd Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: At June 30, 2016, PLCB reported a liability of
$449,176 thousand for its proportionate share of the SERS net pension liability. The net pension
liability attributed to participation in the SERS was measured as of December 3!, 2015, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. PLCB’s proportion of the SERS net pension liability was based on a
projection of the Commonwealth’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative
to the projected contributions of all participating SERS employers, actuarially determined. At
December 31, 2015, PLCB’s reported proportionate share of the SERS net pension liability was
2.47 percent which was an increase of .03 percent from its proportion measured as of December
31, 2014.
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PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD
STATE STORES FUND - JUNE 30, 2016
LIQUOR LECENSE FUND - JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

As of June 30, 2016, PLCB recognized pension expense of $64,659 (in thousands) and reported
deferred outfows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

(in Thousands,)

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 9,095 $ -

Change in assumptions 13,345 -

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings 45,734 -

5,570 5,144

662 492

Change in proportion

Differences between employer contributions and proportionate share

Contributions subsequent to measurement date

Total

Year Ending
(June 30):

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

18,785 -

S 93,191 S 5,636

The $18,785 (in thousands) reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from PLCB’s contributions to SERS subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

_________________

(in Thousands)
$17,642

17,642
17,642
14,830

1,015

Actuarial As.s’uniptions: Every five years, SERS is required to conduct an actuarial experience
study to determine whether the assumptions used in its annual actuarial valuations remain
accurate based on current and anticipated demographic trends and economic conditions. The 18th
Investigation of Actuarial Experience study for the period 2011 — 2015 was released in March
2016. The actuary, under oversight of the SERS Board, reviewed economic assumptions (such as
the assumed future investment returns and salary increases) as well as demographic assumptions
(such as employee turnover, retirement. disability, and death rates). Some assumption
adjustments increased projected cost and some decreased projected cost, but the overall result
was a slight increase to the net pension liability.
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NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

Economic assumption recommendations resulting from the experience study included: keeping
the targeted investment return rate assumption at 7.5%; keeping the inflation rate at 2.75 percent;
keeping the general salary growth rate at 3.05 percent; and decreasing career salary growth rates,
by varying amounts depending upon the employee’s length of service at all service levels. In
addition to the five-year experience study, SERS reviews its investment return assumption in
light of economic conditions every year as part of its annual valuation.

Most demographic assumptions remained the same as or similar to experience over the last five
years. However, the experience study did recommend changing some assumptions, which are
highlighted as follows. The study recommended decreasing disability retirement rates for all
active members. Additionally, it recommended adjusting superannuation separation rates, early
retirement separation rates, and withdrawal rates for certain active member groupings (gender,
age, years of service) in both the general and special membership classes. Furthermore, it
recommended decreasing most annuitant and survivor mortality rates.

The board adopted the actuarial assumptions set forth in the 18th Investigation of Actuarial
Experience at its March 2016 meeting. The study can be viewed at www.SERS.pa.gov.

The following methods and assumptions were used in the actuarial valuation for the December 31, 2015,
measurement date:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age

Amortization Method Straight-line amortization of investments over five
years and amortization of assumption changes and
noninvestment gains/losses over the average
expected remaining service lives of all employees
that are provided benefits

Investment rate of return 7.5% net of expenses including inflation

Projected salary increases Average of 5.7% with range of 3.85% to 9.05%
including inflation

Asset valuation method Fair (market) value

Inflation 2.75%
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NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

Mortality Rate Projected RP-2000 Mortality Tables adjusted for
actual plan experience and future improvement

Cost of living adjustments Ad hoc

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Alternative lnvestnnIs
Global Public Equity
Real Assets
Diversifying Assets
Fixed Income
Liquidity Reserve

Target
Allocation

15 .00%
40.00%

Long-te tin
Expected Rate

of Return
8.50%
5.40%
4.95%
5.00%
1.50%
0.00%

Discount Rate: The SERS discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee
contributions will be made at the rates applicable for each member and that employer
contributions will be made based on rates determined by the actuary. Based on those
assumptions, the SERS fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and non-active SERS members. Therefore the long-
term expected rate of return on SERS investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

17.00%
10.00%
15 .00%
3.00%

100.00%Total
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NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

Sensitit’itj’ of the PLC’B ‘s proportionate share of the net pension liability to change in the
discount rate: The following chart presents the PLCB’s proportionate share of the SERS net
pension liability using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the PLCB’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I
percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or I percentage point higher (8.5 percent) higher than the
current rate.

Cu rrc n I

1% Decrease Discount Rate 10/ Increase
6.5% 7.5% 8.5%

(in Thousands)

PLCB’s proportionate share of SERS net pension
liability as of the 12131/15 measurement dale 5557,961 5449,176 $355,898

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued SERS financial report.

Paj’ahles to the pension plait: For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. the PLCB reported an
accounts payable for the employers’ share of retirement contributions to the SERS in the amount
of $458 thousand.

Additional pertinent information regarding SERS. outside the scope of PLCB reporting, is
published each year as part of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Basic Financial Statements
included in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Postemployntent Health Care Benefits’: The Commonwealth established and sponsors a Retired
Employees Health Program (REI-lP) plan which provides postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB). This plan is administered by the Pennsylvania Employee Benefits Trust Fund,
which acts as a third-party administrator and administers the REHP under an administrative
agreement with the Commonwealth. The plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan.
The PLCB participates in the REHP, which provides a variety of healthcare benefits to eligible
retirees. The OPEB plan and benefit provisions therein have been established under pertinent
statutory authority. The OPEB plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report nor is it included
in the financial statements of a public employee retirement system.
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NOTE C - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(Continued)

REHP contribution requirements are established by the Office of Administration and the
Governor’s Budget Office. During the fiscal year ended June 30. 2016, the PLCB contributed
$418 for each active employee paid and reported as part of biweekly payroll expenses for its
employees. For the fiscal year ended June 30. 2016. the PLCBs allocated share of the total
REFIP Annual OPEB Cost (amounts in thousands) of S 1.169,885 (for the Commonwealth’s
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016) was $47,677. The last year that was fully funded for the entire
REHP Annual OPEB Cost, for all REHP-participating organizations, was for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. The unfunded OPEB liability has been recorded for subsequent fiscal
years. The prior year unfunded liability (amounts in thousands) of $76,653, plus an additional
increase ofSI3,525. resulted in a total unfunded liability of $90,178 as ofJune 30, 2016.

Additional pertinent information on the REHP. outside the scope of PLCB reporting, including
overall actuarial liabilities and assumptions related to the Commonwealth as a whole, are
published each year as part of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Basic Financial Statements
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2016 are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Fiscal year ended June 30. 2016:
Balance Balance

June 30. 2015 Additions Retirements June 30. 2016
Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land S 323 S - $ - $ 323
Depreciable capital assets:
Building 19.558 - - 19,558
Leasehold improvements 758 - - 758
Machinen and equipment 46.576 8.229 3,220 51.585
Intangibles 27.541 3.274 10.256 20.559
Total capital assets $ 94,756 $11,503. S 13,416 $_92,783
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NOTE D — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Changes in capital assets accumulated depreciation for the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30. 2015 Additions Retirements .June 30, 2016

Buildings $ 12.5 16 5 795 5 - S 13,311
Leasehold improvements 564 48 - 6)2
Machinen’ and equipment 24.967 4.389 3.078 26.278
Intangibles 19.681 3.938 10.255 13.364
Total accumulated depreciation S53j2E $_9J_TQ$_U,331 S3456i

Fiscal year ended June 30. 2015:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2013 Additions Retirements .lune 30, 2015

Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land S 323 S - S - S 323
Depreciable capital assets:
Building 19.558 - - 19,558
Leasehold improvements 2.478 - 1,720 758
Machinen’ and equipment 40,384 7,157 965 46.576
Intangibles 50.742 4.346 27.547 27.54 I
Total capital assets 5LU,4$5 $jJ,5_03 232 $9A316

Changes in capital assets accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30. 2014 Additions Retirements .June 30, 2015

Buildings 5 11,640 S 876 $ - $ 12,516
Leasehold improvements 2.202 74 1.712 564
Machinery and equipment 21,665 4.252 950 24,967
Intangibles 42.921 4.308 27.548 19.681
Total accumulated depreciation S_ZBA2I $2,5tQ $_1O,210

________

NOTE E - DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

At June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015. a total (amounts in thousands) of $8,688 and $7,690.
respectively, was due to other funds. This total was due to various funds.
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NOTE F - LEASE COMMITMENTS

The PLCB, through the Department of General Services, has operating leases covering all of its
Fine Wine and Good Spirits store locations and some equipment. The leases generally provide
for an initial term of three to ten years. Most leases have options for renewal. For leases not
renewed, but not terminated, the lease will continue as a renewal in 90 day increments into the
future. For such leases. only 90 days of future rental commitments are included in the rental
commitment schedule below.

Rental expenses (amounts in thousands). for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and June 30,
2015 were $47,297 and $44,902. respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable operating
leases in effect as of June 30, 2016, (amounts in thousands):

Fine Wine
and Good

Fiscal Year Spirits Store
Ended June [eases

2017 $36,755
2018 31,344
2019 25,813
2020 20.220
2021 16.784

Total Minimum
Lease Payments: SI 30.916

NOTE C - OPERATING TRANSFERS TO GENERAL FUND

The PLCB is subject to profit transfer requirements pursuant to 47 P.S. §8-802(fl, determined
annually by the Governor’s Office, whereby stipulated funds are transferred to help finance the
General Fund.

Act lOA of 2015 was enacted December 29. 2015 with a provision that the suit of $100 million
shall be transferred from the State Stores Fund to the General Fund. The Act IOA of 2015
transfer did not replace or supplant the PLCBS authority to make payments to the General Fund
pursuant to 47 P.S. §8-802(fl.
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NOTE C - OPERATING TRANSFERS TO GENERAL FUND (Continued)

The required transfers were $100 million and $80 million for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

NOTE H - OPERATING TRANSFER FOR DRUG AND ALCOHOL
PROGRAMS

Per Act 1987-14, two percent of the PLCB’s profits from the sale of alcohol shall be transferred
to the Department of Drug and Alcohol Programs (DDAP) for drug and alcohol rehabilitation
programs. The PLCB establishes a liability for the amount due to the DDAP and transfers the
payment in the subsequent fiscal year.

In addition to the fiscal year 2014-2015 amount for the purposes set forth in Act 1987-14, Act 25
of 2016 was enacted April 25, 2016 and contains a provision that resulted in an additional $828
thousand other operating transfer out to DDAP reported in fiscal year 2015-2016.

Act 85 of 2016 was enacted July 13, 2016 and contains a provision that resulted in a $2.5 million
other operating transfer out to DDAP reported for fiscal year 2015-2016 (for fiscal year 2016-
2017 transfer) for the purposes set forth in Act 1987-14.

The amount of the liabilities (amounts in thousands) established to the DDAP were $3,328 and
$1,672 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively.

NOTE I - OPERATING TRANSFER FOR LIQUOR CONTROL
ENFORCEMENT

The PLCB provides the funding for the Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Liquor Control
Enforcement, which is responsible for enforcing the laws and regulations governing the
trafficking of alcoholic beverages throughout the Commonwealth. The transfers (amounts in
thousands) were $26,091 and $25,726 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30,
2015, respectively.

NOTE J - CONTINGENCIES-LITIGATION

The PLCB is a defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally incidental
to routine operations. Based on the current status of these legal proceedings, it is the opinion of
the PLCB’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the PLCB’s
financial position.
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NOTE K - STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position illustrates the net asset activities throughout
each fiscal year for the Liquor License Fund

Cash additions include cash received from license application fees as \\eIl as cash resulting fiom
the sale of temporary inestments. Cash deductions mclude the purchase of temporary
inestments as ell as cash remitted to the municipalities.

Temporary investments’ additions and deductions result from the purchase and sale of securities.

Due to municipalities’ additions include monies received from license application fees. Due to
municipalities’ deductions include payments remitted to municipalities.

NOTE L - SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation, which includes
indemnity and medical payments (employee disability) for its employees injured on the job. The
Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital claims and for tort liability
claims. N’lajor tort risks include automobile, employee and general torts. For property losses, the
Commonwealth has a $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance coverage up to SI
billion per occurrence. There was no reduction in commercial insurance coverage during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. No settlements e\ceeded commercial insurance coverage during
each of the past three fiscal years The Commonwealth has established various administrative
policies, which are intended to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks

PLCB participates in each Commonsealth self-insurance program and pays prescribed program
amounts or rates throughout its fiscal year. These amounts, reported as current fiscal year
expenses. finance a portion of cumulative. estimated self-insurance liabilities incurred, in
amounts sufficient to fund ongoing program needs These amounts do not finance all
cumulative, estimated self-insurance liabilities incurred. Thei efore. accrued liabilities for
employee disability and annuitant medical/hospital claims are established based on reserves
computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience: such claims are not discounted and do
not include non-incremental claims adjustment expenses
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NOTE L — SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES (Continued)

At June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015, respectively, the State Stores Fund reported (amounts in
thousands) a $47,059 liability ($7,772 as current and $39,287 as non-current) and $49,926
liability ($7,817 as current and $42,109 as non-current) for employee disability claims.

The following summary provides aggregated information for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016
and June 30, 2015 of the reported self-insurance liabilities to include the incurred claims and
payments during the fiscal years then ended (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Liability — Incurred Liability —

End Beginning Balance Claims Payments Ending Balance

June 30, 2016 $49,926 $2,477 $5,344 $47,059
June 30, 2015 $30,565 $26,831 $7,470 $49,926

NOTE M - RESTATEMENT

Restatement Due to Change in Accounting Principle:

The implementation of GASB 68 resulted in the reporting of a pension liability and deferred
outflow, therefore, the State Store Fund’s beginning net position at July 1,2014 was restated.

Presented below are the changes to the State Store Fund’s Statement of Net Position as a result of
implementing GASB 68. The State Stores Fund Net Position changed by a total of
$(3 17,822,168).

State Stores Fund
Net Position, as previously reported, at June 30, 2014 $ 77,189,035

Apply GASB 68
Pension Liability $ (330,976,835)
Deferred Outflows $ 13,154.667

Total Prior Period Adjustment $ (317,822,168)
Net Position, as restated, at July 1,2014 $ (240,633,133)
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NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On June 8, 2016, the Governor of Pennsylvania signed into law Act 39 of 2016 (Act 39).
Effective August 8, 2016, Act 39 made significant changes to PLCB operations including:
permits for limited wine sales at hotel and restaurant license holders, including approved grocery
or convenience stores; direct wine shipment from registered vendors to Pennsylvania residents;
removed restrictions to the number of open stores and hours on Sundays; created a new 24/7
casino liquor license; limited special liquor order mark-ups, allowed for common retail pricing
flexibility; approved auctions of expired liquor licenses; and authorized Pennsylvania lottery
sales at state stores. Act 39 will impact PLCB operations beginning in the next fiscal year.
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Schedule of PLCB’s Contributions (Do//at IIIIQIIIIIS III lhOln(i,ld’,)

Law Ten Ticcal ) can Ended June 30 (I)

2016 2015

Contractually required contribution (2) S 33,752 S 27,044
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution S 33 752 S 27,044
Contribution deficienc tecess) - -

PLCB’s coered-employee payroll $166301 5162,037
Contributions as a percentage of coered-empIoyee payroll 20 25% 16 69%

PLCB adopted GASS 68 on a prospecti’.e basis for the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, therefore, only to
years are presented in the aboe schedules The amounts presented for each fiscal year ere determined as of
December 3 I

(2) The contractually required contribution disclosed above is based on minimum floor rates or suppressed rates
resulting from collars that are required based on statutory la These rates are determined by SERS actuary
during the annual funding valuation and include an adjustment to the “preliminary employer contribution rate”
calculated before the minimum floor or collars are applied These “final employer contribution rates” fall vithin
the realm of an appropriate contractually required contribution calculation under actuarial standards of practice
and temporarily defer a portion of the payments that nork toards full3 funding the plan
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Schedule of PLCB’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liaiblity (Dollar
.1monnts in Thousands)

Last Thu Fiscal Yews Ended Jiuw 30

_____________

2015

PLCB’s proportion of the net pension liability 2.47% 2.44%
PLCB’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $449,176 $362,685
PLCB’s covered-employee payroll $166,701 $162,037
PLCB’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 269.45% 223.83%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 58.90% 64.80%

PLCB adopted GASB 68 on a prospective basis for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015; therefore, only two
years are presented in the above schedules. The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of
December 3 I.

(2) Every five years, SERS is required to conduct an actuarial experience study to determine whether the
assumptions used in its annual actuarial valuations remain accurate based on current and anticipated
demographic trends and economic conditions. The 18h Investigation of Actuarial Experience study for the
period 2011 — 2015 was released in March 2016 and can be viewed at www.sers.pa.gov. The actuary, under
oversight of the SERS Board, reviewed economic assumptions (such as the assumed future investment returns
and salary increases) as well as demographic assumptions (such as employee turnover, retirement, disability, and
death rates). Some assumption adjustments increased projected cost and some decreased projected cost, but the
overall result was an increase to the net pension liability.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Go ;‘ernnvent A nd/ring Stui; dun/s

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Torn Wolf The 1-lonorable Tim Holden
Governor Chairman
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board
Harrisburg, PA 17120 l-larrisburg, PA 17124

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying Statements
of Net Position. Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and Statements
of Cash Flows for the State Stores Fund, and the Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the Liquor License Fund of the
Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (PLCB) as of and for the years ended June 30. 2016 and
2015. and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 6. 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PLCB’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PLCBs
internal control. Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PLCBs
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned Functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material u’eaknecs is a
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deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the PLCB’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, material weakness
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the PLCB’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governuwni Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
PLCB’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Governnzem Auditing Standards in considering PLCB’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

December 6, 2016 Eugene A. DePasquale
Auditor General
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